

# State of Delaware Water Pollution Control Fund

FFY 2024 Intended Use Plan

Prepared by: The Department of Natural Resources & Environmental Control, Environmental Finance Issued: March 20, 2024

### Table of Contents

I.	INTRODUCTION
II.	CWSRF PROGRAM GOALS
III.	FUND SOURCES, USES, AND PROGRAM REQUIREMENT
IV.	PROJECT SELECTION FUNDING PROCESS
V.	INTEREST RATES AND LOAN TERMS
VI.	AFFORDABILITY CRITERIA
VII.	AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL SUBSIDIZATION
VIII.	LOANS FOR PRIVATE BUSINESSES, PRIVATE LANDOWNERS, PRIVATELY-OWNED PROJECTS
IX.	PROJECT ELIGIBILITIES
X.	CWSRF FINANCIAL STATUS
XI.	PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT
XII.	Assurances
XIII.	CWSRF AND DWSRF FEDERAL FUND TRANSFERABILITY
XIV.	CWSRF MUNICIPAL AND GREEN PROJECTS - FUNDING LIST
XV.	Non – Federal Administration Account
XVI.	<b>APPENDIX</b>

# Delaware Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund FFY 2024 Intended Use Plan

### I. Introduction

This Intended Use Plan (IUP) is required by Section 606(c) of the Clean Water Act (CWA) and will be submitted to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) as part of the State of Delaware's FFY 2024 Federal Capitalization Grant Applications. An IUP is prepared annually, with an option to submit a revised IUP mid-year, ensuring that all potential loan applicants have an opportunity to submit project needs for funding consideration. This IUP will be submitted to EPA in April 2024.

The IUP identifies the intended use of the funds requested, and how the additional financial assistance will support the goals of the Delaware Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund, also known as the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF). The mission of the CWSRF is to provide a continuing source of financing for environmental infrastructure capital needs to maintain and improve water quality. Financial assistance is provided by the CWSRF to public and private entities for planning, design, and construction of wastewater collection, treatment and disposal facilities, stormwater infrastructure improvements, non-point source, and estuary water pollution control projects.

Although previously approved and awarded by EPA, this IUP also describes the transfer of Federal funds between the Department of Health and Social Service's (DHSS) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) and the CWSRF. It identifies how the additional financial assistance was used to support the goals of the CWSRF, and the amount of the transfer.

All eligible applicants submitting Project Notices-of-Intent (NOIs) are listed on the 2024 Project Priority List (2024 PPL) in priority order. However, no funds are committed or reserved for individual projects until financial assistance applications are solicited, received, and approved; indicating the project's readiness to proceed. Projects that are ready to proceed are then funded in priority order.

### II. CWSRF Program Goals

The State of Delaware is committed to using Federal capitalization grants to provide financial assistance for eligible projects that will proceed quickly to construction, and further the water quality mission of the CWSRF. The following are the short- term and long-term goals.

### Short-Term Goals

To enter into binding commitments for projects that will proceed to construction or award of construction contracts within eight (8) quarters of the FFY 2024 Grant awards.

To achieve a CWSRF program "PACE" that exceeds 95 percent utilization of available funds for project binding loan commitments.

To first expend the full State match requirement of the Capitalization Grants, and then spend the Federal portion of the Capitalization Grants.

To expand the loan portfolio of the CWSRF to include other innovative uses such as loans for land conservation, stormwater, water conservation, energy efficiency, as well as green and sustainable water infrastructure projects consistent with CWSRF program rules, requirements, and regulations.

To enhance the collaboration between DNREC and DHSS relative to the operation of the CWSRF and DWSRF programs. These enhancements will focus on adding increased program value to applicants and borrowers, such as:

- Combined CWSRF and DWSRF Semi-Annual Workshops
- Offering Planning and Design Loans for Projects that are not Ready to Proceed
- Combined CWSRF and DWSRF Loan Closings (where applicable)
- Eliminate need for Interim Construction Project Financing from other funding sources (bank financing for project construction is not needed; CWSRF and DWSRF funds can be used for project planning, design, and construction); loan reimbursement requests based on incurred eligible project costs are normally processed within 30 days
- Processing Loan Reimbursement Requests within 30 days or less

To provide technical assistance to rural and small publicly owned treatment works. The CWSRF will provide technical assistance in a variety of ways, including soliciting a contractor to provide assistance to small, rural systems, with the goal of helping systems put themselves in a position to move forward with an application for funding from the CWSRF. Additionally, CWSRF internal staff will provide technical assistance as needed to small and rural systems.

To enhance marketing and outreach to disadvantaged communities by partnering with Counties, municipalities, DHSS, Delaware State Housing Authority, Southeast RCAP, and other potential non-profits to educate potential borrowers about the CWSRF program and other State funding programs.

To comply with all Federal capitalization grant and project reporting requirements.

To analyze financial leveraging as a tool that may be needed to help meet the growing demand for loans provided by the CWSRF.

### Long-Term Goals

To ensure the long-term viability of the CWSRF program, while providing necessary project subsidization when needed.

To optimize the CWSRF program to address changing loan demand for Non-Point Source concerns and other difficult to finance water quality improvement issues.

To identify and fund projects associated with the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL).

To periodically evaluate additional funding opportunities to meet emerging water quality and public health needs.

### III. Fund Sources, Uses, and Program Requirement

DNREC will be applying for the FFY 2024 Federal Base Capitalization Grant of \$3,683,000\* for which a twenty percent (20%) State match \$368,300\* is required, the General Supplemental Grant of \$10,233,000\*for which a twenty percent (20%) State match \$2,046,600\* is required, and the Emerging Contaminants Grant of \$1,043,000\* for which a zero percent (0%) State match \$0 is required. The required (20%) State matches will be provided from State appropriations and deposited into the fund upon receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Capitalization Grants.

Water Resources Reform and Development Act (WRRDA) amendment changes to the CWSRF program allow 1/5 of 1% of the CWSRF's Net Fund Position to be used for Federal program administration; a total of \$705,594 was used for SFY 2024 and \$705,594 is projected for SFY 2025 use, which will not exceed the statutory limit.

Additionally, two percent (2%) of the combined FFY 2024 Federal Capitalization Grants will be used for technical assistance, estimated at \$299,180\*. The 2% is intended to assist rural and small publicly owned treatment works. The uses of fund include, but is not limited to, community outreach, technical evaluation of wastewater solutions, preparation of applications, preliminary engineering reports, and financial documents necessary for receiving SRF assistance. This provision applies to the base program, the general supplemental, and emerging contaminants funds.

The estimated ten percent (10%) minimum additional subsidy of \$368,300\*, and (10%) mandated congressional authority subsidy of \$368,300\* for the Base FFY 2024 Grant will be used for principal loan forgiveness for eligible borrowers. Additionally,(10%) \$368,300\* will be used for projects funded under a Green Project Reserve (GPR) - green infrastructure, water or energy efficiency, and innovative uses. Up to thirty percent (30%) \$1,104,900\* of the FFY Base 2024 Grant may be used for additional subsidization under WRRDA based on project affordability.

The mandated forty-nine (49%) of the FFY 2024 Supplemental Federal Capitalization Grant in the amount of \$5,014,170\* will be used for additional subsidy for eligible borrowers. Additionally, (10%) \$1,033,600\* will directed toward GPR funding.

The mandated one hundred percent (100%) of the FFY 2024 Emerging Contaminants Federal Capitalization Grant in the amount of \$1,043,000\* will be used for additional subsidy for eligible borrowers, of which \$104,300\* will be directed to GPR.

The CWSRF reserves the right to transfer up to the full amount of emerging contaminants grant to the DWSRF.

\*FFY 2024 Federal Capitalization Grant amounts are subject to the final allotments which have not yet been released. Award amounts and prescriptive State Match are assumed at FFY 2023 amounts. Additionally, any percentage based additional subsidy and green project reserve are assumed at the FFY 2023 amounts.

# Table-1 Sources and Uses

CWSRF SFY 2025 Sources:	
Projected Fund Balance at 6/30/2024	\$105,783,398
Base Cap Grant *	\$3,683,000
Base Cap Grant State Match*	\$736,600
Supplemental Cap Grant*	\$10,233,000
Supplemental Cap Grant State Match*	\$2,046,600
Emerging Contaminants Cap Grant*	\$1,043,000
Emerging Contaminants Cap Grant State Match	\$0
Projected Repayments to the Fund	\$23,013,162
Projected Investment Interest Income	\$2,000,000
Total Sources for SFY 2025	\$148,538,760

### CWSRF SFY 2025 Uses:

1/5 <sup>th</sup> of 1% Administration of the Fund (Based on SFY 2024)	\$705,594
2% Technical Assistance (FFY 2024 All Cap Grants)	\$299,180
Estimated Loan Disbursements from PPL & Loans in Construction	\$140,859,969
Total Uses	\$141,864,743
Projected Ending Fund Balance at 6/30/2025	\$6,674,017

\* FFY 2024 Federal Capitalization Grant amounts are subject to the final allotments which have not yet been released. Award amounts and prescriptive State Match are assumed at FFY 2023 amounts.

Note: Total PPL exceeds expected disbursements.

### Transfer between SRF programs

In FFY 2012, the DWSRF transferred \$27,050,176 in Federal and \$5,410,035 in State funds to the CWSRF program. The transferred funds were used to provide a CWSRF loan for the City of Wilmington's Renewable Energy Biosolids Facility (REBF). Should repayment become necessary, the transfer will be repaid by meeting DWSRF loan disbursement needs. It is the understanding between both DNREC and DHSS that up to \$32,460,211 will be made available for DWSRF loan disbursements after the following funding sources have been exhausted: first Federal Capitalization Grants; and second DWSRF loan repayments. After these funding sources have been exhausted, DNREC will provide loan disbursements for existing and/or new DWSRF loans on a cash flow basis as needed up to the amount of the previously transferred DWSRF funds stated above. To date, no funds have been transferred back to the DWSRF program.

### IV. Project Selection Funding Process

On January 17, 2024, a workshop was held to provide a detailed overview of the CWSRF and DWSRF programs; and to inform municipalities, private businesses, consulting engineering firms, non-profits, and other interested parties of the need to submit NOIs for the 2024 PPL process by February 16, 2024. Fifteen (15) new NOIs were received totaling \$78,212,440.

The selection process for funding projects in part with FFY 2024 Grant funds is based on their respective 2024 PPL ranking, and readiness to proceed. The following projects with a total cost of \$345,294,358 may receive CWSRF funding: thirty-four (34) Wastewater/Stormwater Projects are projected to utilize \$241,283,030 from the CWSRF; and five (5) Green Project Reserve (GPR) projects are projected to utilize \$13,581,909. Prior year projects remain on the funding list until the associated loans are closed or withdrawn by applicants.



The remaining portion of this page was intentionally left blank.

# Table 2 – Wastewater, Stormwater, and Green Project Reserve (GPR) Projects Selected for CWSRF Funding

Lenses Band of Public Works Gene Heriopen Sever Ederation         S3 875.000         S3 875.000           Hormal Javrana Sever Ederation         S3 875.000         S1 814.888         S1 814.888           Hormal Javrana Sever Ederation         S2 877.725         S2 877.725         S2 884.015           Kant Count Law Zoard         S1 814.888         S1 814.888         S1 814.888         S1 814.888           Kant Count Law Zoard         S1 83.875.000         S2 800.000         S2 800.000         S2 800.000           Pepter Contition Assessment (Ppe-12 in Diameter)         S4 300.000         S2 200.000         S1 2280.000         S1 2280.000           Pepter Contition Assessment (Ppe-12 in Diameter)         S4 300.000         S2 200.000         S1 2280.000         S1 2280.000         S1 314.015           Dewatering Process Reliab         S1 2280.000         S1 2280.000         S1 00.000         S0 000.000         S0 000.000           Statation /R Statagement         S9 000.000         S0 000.000         S0 000.000         S1 00.000         S1 0.000.000         S1 0.000.000         S1 0.203.000         S1 0.203.000           Statation /R Statagement         S1 62.000.000         S1 0.203.000         S1 0.203.000         S1 0.203.000         S1 0.203.000         S1 0.203.000         S1 0.233.000         S1 0.233.000         S1 0.233.000	Applicant / Project Name	Total Project Cost	CWSRF Loan Requested	Base or Corpus Funding	Supplemental Funding	EC Funding
Cape Hendpoor Sever Edension         \$3.375,000         \$3.375,000         \$3.375,000           Ath Steed Edwars Replacement and Improvements         \$2.187,735         \$2.187,735         \$2.187,735           MS Test Gaunty Lever Cont         \$1.814,888         \$3.184,888         \$3.184,888         \$3.184,888           MS To South From Man Improvements         \$2.187,735         \$2.187,735         \$2.187,735         \$2.187,735           MS To South From Man Improvements         \$2.187,735         \$2.187,735         \$2.280,000         \$2.2300,000           Owner Man Switchger and Electrical Substations         \$1.220,000         \$3.100,000         \$3.100,000         \$3.100,000           Opsterin francement Flate         \$7.550,100         \$7.550,100         \$5.250,000         \$5.250,000         \$5.250,000         \$5.250,000         \$5.000,	Lewes Board of Public Works					
Hadmid Javane Sewe Externation         51814.888         51.814.888         51.814.888           Hardmed Javane Sewe Externation         51.814.888         51.814.888         51.814.888           Kan County Levy Count         51.0117,755         52.817,755         53.804.015         53.804.015           Lis Souch Froze Man Replacement Project         \$10.314.015         58.884.015         53.800.000         52.300.000         52.300.000           Control Man Replacement Project         \$10.220,000         \$12.220,000         \$22.200.000         \$22.200.000         \$10.000           Dewetering Process Rehab         Control Manufactore         \$12.220,000         \$7.560,100         \$7.560,100         \$7.560,100         \$50.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.000,00         \$10.230,000         \$50.000,00         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000,000         \$10.233,000         \$10.233,000	Cape Henlopen Sewer Extension	\$3,875,000	\$3,875,000	\$3,875,000		
afth Streed Sever Replacement and Improvements         52,187,755         52,187,755         52,187,755           US 13 South Frace Main Replacement Project         \$10,314,015         \$58,840,015         \$58,840,015           US 13 South Frace Main Replacement Project         \$10,314,015         \$58,840,015         \$58,840,015           US 13 South Frace Main Replacement Project         \$41,000,000         \$53,100,000         \$53,100,000           Cing of Withinston         \$51,2200,000         \$51,2200,000         \$51,2200,000         \$51,043,000           WWTF Main Switchgar and Electrical Substations         \$12,2200,000         \$52,2500,000         \$52,2500,000         \$52,2500,000         \$52,2500,000         \$52,2500,000         \$51,043,000           Operator A Rehatination         \$50,000,000         \$50,000,000         \$50,000,000         \$50,000,000         \$50,000,000         \$51,023,00	Hoornkill Avenue Sewer Extension	\$1,814,888	\$1,814,888	\$1,814,888		
Kent County Levy Court Pipeline Contition Assessment (Pipel-12 in Diameter)         \$10, 314, 015         \$5, 894, 015         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 200, 000         \$5, 000,	4th Street Sewer Replacement and Improvements	\$2,187,735	\$2,187,735	\$2,187,735		
US 13 South Force Main Replacement Project US 13 South Force Main Replacement Project Projents Continue Assessment (Poper 12 in Diameter) S4,000,00 S3,000,00 S3,000,00 S3,000,00 S3,000,00 S1,020,000 S1,020,000 S1,020,000 S1,020,000 S1,020,000 S5,020,000 S5,020,000 S5,020,000 S5,000,000	Kent County Levy Court					
Pipeline Condition Assessment (Piper12 in Diameter) Pipeline Condition Assessment (Piper12 in Diameter) City of Winnetion City of Winnetion City of Winnetion City of Winnetion Winnet Face Pipeline Condition Assessment (Piper12 in Diameter) Status Displant mut or Status	US 13 South Force Main Replacement Project	\$10,314,015	\$6,894,015	\$6,894,015		
Preleting Condition Assessment (Piper12 in Diameter) 44,100,000 53,100,000 53,100,000 53,100,000 53,100,000 512,280,000 512,280,000 512,280,000 512,280,000 51	Pipeline Condition Assessment (Pipe>12 in Diameter)	\$4,300,000	\$2,300,000	\$2,300,000		
Chy of Wintention         Chy of Wintention         S12,280,000         S12,010,000         S10,010,000         S10,020,000         S2,000,000         S2,000,000         S2,000,000         S2,000,000         S2,000,000         S10,223,000         S10,233,000         S10,233,000 <td>Pipeline Condition Assessment (Pipe&lt;12 in Diameter)</td> <td>\$4,100,000</td> <td>\$3,100,000</td> <td>\$3,100,000</td> <td></td> <td></td>	Pipeline Condition Assessment (Pipe<12 in Diameter)	\$4,100,000	\$3,100,000	\$3,100,000		
Dewatemp Process Refab         \$12,280,000         \$12,280,000         \$12,280,000           WITP Man Switchger and Electrical Substations         \$12,280,000         \$12,280,000         \$12,280,000           Destering Reduction         \$10,000,000         \$12,280,000         \$12,280,000         \$12,280,000           SCO 3D Exhange Reduction         \$10,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$10,000,000           SCO 4D Dischange Reduction         \$10,000,000         \$10,000,000         \$10,000,000         \$10,000,000           SCO 3D Exhange Reduction         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000           Secondary Treatment Rehabiliation         \$2,200,000         \$1,023,000         \$10,233,000         \$10,233,000           Warvick Park Area Fump Station and Force main         \$2,36,000         \$1,270,000         \$2,270,000         \$10,233,000           Brawnood Estates         \$4,673,303         \$4,677,000         \$2,270,000         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800           Warvick Park Gravity Collection System         \$2,477,000         \$2,277,000         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800	City of Wilmington					
WW IF Main Switchgear and Electrical Substations         \$12,260,000         \$12,260,000         \$27,660,100           Utilingstate improvement Flame         \$7,660,100         \$2,760,100         \$2,760,100           CSO 30 Discharge Reduction         \$10,100,000         \$10,000,000         \$10,000,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$10,000,000         \$3,000,000         \$2,000,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000         \$2,000,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$2,200,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$2,239,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000           Substation 37,866,100         \$2,239,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000           Substation 37,867,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$3,770,800           Substation 37,867,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$3,1300,000 <tr< td=""><td>Dewatering Process Rehab</td><td><b>A</b> / A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>\$1,043,000</td></tr<>	Dewatering Process Rehab	<b>A</b> / A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A				\$1,043,000
Upgester         S7.060,100         S7.060,100         S7.060,100         S7.060,100           CSO 30 Discharge Reduction         S1.000,000         S15.000,000         S2.200,000           SLOS 40 Discharge Reduction         S1.000,000         S10.000,000         S0.000,000           Substation 37 Replacement         S9.000,000         S5.000,000         S5.000,000           Substation 37 Replacement         S9.000,000         S5.000,000         S5.000,000           Substation 37 Replacement         S5.000,000         S5.000,000         S5.000,000           Secondary Teammer Retabilitation         S2.250,000         S1.225,000         S1.225,000           Starker 4 Retabilitation         S5.000,000         S1.225,000         S1.225,000           Starker 2 Sta	WWIP Main Switchgear and Electrical Substations	\$12,260,000	\$12,260,000	\$12,260,000		
Winnington 11st Sewage PS replacement and upgrade         38, 250,000         38, 250,000         315,000,000         315,000,000         315,000,000         315,000,000         315,000,000         315,000,000         315,000,000         350,000,000 </td <td>Digester Improvement Flare</td> <td>\$7,560,100</td> <td>\$7,560,100</td> <td>\$7,560,100</td> <td></td> <td></td>	Digester Improvement Flare	\$7,560,100	\$7,560,100	\$7,560,100		
CSO 30 Lincharge Reduction         \$15,000,000         \$10,100,000         \$10,100,000           Substation #3 Replacement         \$30,000,000         \$50,000,000         \$50,000,000           Substation #3 Replacement         \$2,200,000         \$50,000,000         \$50,000,000           Substation #3 Replacement Rehabilitation 2024         \$6,000,000         \$11,225,000         \$10,223,000           Backwater Vilage         \$16,273,000         \$10,273,000         \$10,233,000           Backwater Vilage         \$16,273,000         \$10,773,000         \$3,770,800           Nam/C Park Revity Collection System         \$3,470,300         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800           Naw Castle County         \$3,470,300         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800           Subtem Sanidary Swer Ares         \$2,677,000         \$26,767,000         \$22,07,700         \$22,00,000         \$15,000,000           Subtem Sanidary Swer Suby and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000	Wilmington 11st Sewage PS replacement and upgrade	\$6,250,000	\$6,250,000	\$6,250,000		
CSO 4a Discharge Keduction         \$10,100,000         \$10,100,000         \$30,000,000           Digester 4 Retabilitation         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Stostation 67 Replacement         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Stostation 67 Replacement         \$5,200,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Stostation 67 Replacement         \$5,200,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Stostation 67 Replacement         \$5,250,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000           BitaxvaterVillage         \$4,631,363         \$4,631,363         \$4,631,363           Warwick Park Gravity Collection System         \$9,236,846         \$9,226,846         \$9,226,846           Bothary Forest         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300         \$3,770,800           New Castle County         \$26,677,000         \$26,677,000         \$22,000,000         \$3,300,000           Southern Sanitary Sever Area         \$15,549,000         \$15,000,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000           City of Neward         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000           Southern Sanitary Sever Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000         \$	CSO 30 Discharge Reduction	\$15,000,000	\$15,000,000	\$15,000,000		
Substation #3 Replacement         \$9,000,000         \$9,000,000         \$5,000,000           Pinary Clarifier #1 Rehabilitation 2024         \$6,000,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Secondary Treatment Rehabilitation 2024         \$6,000,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Biackwater Vilage         \$2,350,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000           Biackwater Vilage         \$1,627,3000         \$4,631,363         \$4,631,363         \$4,631,363           North Ellerlate Diversion         \$9,323,846         \$9,2236,846         \$9,2236,846         \$9,2236,846           Warwick Park reavity Collection System         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700           Bethamy Forest         \$4,471,330         \$4,471,330         \$4,473,300         \$4,870,300           Varwick Park reavity Collection System         \$2,876,7000         \$22,770,000         \$22,770,000         \$32,770,800           Southern Santary Swer Area         \$15,520,000         \$33,770,800         \$32,770,800         \$32,770,800           Santary Swer Shudy and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000           Silverbroak Plang Station and Force Wain         \$2,283,400         \$2,283,400         \$2,200,000         \$2,200	CSO 4a Discharge Reduction	\$10,100,000	\$10,100,000	\$10,100,000		
Digester 4 Rehabilitation         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Secondary Treatment Rehabilitation         \$2,500,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Secondary Treatment Rehabilitation         \$2,500,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Secondary Treatment Rehabilitation         \$2,500,000         \$5,000,000         \$5,000,000           Warwick Park Area Pump Station and Force main         \$2,250,000         \$5,423,000         \$6,4631,363           Bickwater Village         \$16,273,000         \$5,4631,363         \$6,4631,363           Markick Park Gravity Collection System         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700           Bethary Forest         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300           Indian River Acres         \$3,3770,800         \$3,370,800         \$3,370,800           Warwick Carls         \$2,6767,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000           Southern Santary Sever Area         \$2,6767,000         \$2,200,000         \$3,300,000         \$33,300,000           Southern Santary Sever Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$1,500,000         \$1,500,000         \$1,500,000           Southern Santary Sever Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000 <t< td=""><td>Substation #3 Replacement</td><td>\$9,000,000</td><td>\$9,000,000</td><td>\$9,000,000</td><td></td><td></td></t<>	Substation #3 Replacement	\$9,000,000	\$9,000,000	\$9,000,000		
Primary Quartier #1 Rehabilitation         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$6,000,000<	Digester 4 Rehabilitation	\$5,000,000	\$5,000,000	\$5,000,000		
Secondary Treatment Rehabilitation 2024         \$6,000.000         \$6,000.000         \$1,225,000           Warwick Park Area Pump Station and Force main         \$2,350,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000           Biarwood Estates         \$4,431,303         \$4,431,303         \$4,431,303         \$4,431,303           Warwick Park Gravity Collection System         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700           Warwick Park Gravity Collection System         \$4,871,300         \$4,477,300         \$4,877,300         \$4,877,300           Bethary Forest         \$4,871,300         \$4,877,300         \$4,877,300         \$4,877,300         \$3,770,800           Southern Sanitary Sever Area         \$26,767,000         \$23,770,800         \$33,770,800         \$33,000,000         \$315,000,000           Christina River Force Main Rehabilitation - Phase 2         \$26,767,000         \$22,00,000         \$315,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000	Primary Clarifier #1 Rehabilitation	\$2,500,000	\$2,500,000	\$2,500,000		
Sussex County Council         Sussex County Council         Sussex County Council         Stitum and Park area Pump Station and Force main         Stitum and Park area Pump Station and Force main         Stitum and Park area Pump Station and Force main         Stitum and Park area Pump Station and Force main         Stitum and Park area Pump Station and Force main         Stitum and Park area Pump Station and Park area Park ar	Secondary Treatment Rehabilitation 2024	\$6,000,000	\$6,000,000	\$6,000,000		
Warvick Park Area Pump Station and Force main         \$2,350,000         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000           Bickweiter Village         \$1,225,000         \$1,225,000         \$10,233,000           Braiwood Estates         \$4,631,303         \$4,631,303         \$4,631,303         \$4,631,303           North Ellendale Diversion         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700           Braiwood Estates         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$3,770,800           Marwick Park Gravity Collection System         \$9,474,700         \$3,770,800         \$4,870,300         \$4,473,300           Southern Sanitary Sever Area         \$2,6767,000         \$2,6767,000         \$33,770,800         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000           Sintary Sever Area         \$2,6767,000         \$2,200,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$1,023,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,0	Sussex County Council					
Blackwater Village \$16,273,000 \$16,273,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,233,000 \$10,200 \$10	Warwick Park Area Pump Station and Force main	\$2,350,000	\$1,225,000	\$1,225,000		
Briarwood Estates         \$4,631,363         \$4,631,363         \$4,631,363           Warwick Park Gravity Collection System         \$9,238,846         \$9,237,000         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,3770,800         \$\$,33000,000         \$\$,33000,000         \$\$,33000,000         \$\$,33000,000         \$\$,33000,000         \$\$,333,000,000         \$\$,333,000,000         \$\$,333,000,000         \$\$,333,000,000         \$\$,333,000,000         \$\$,333,000,000         \$\$,500,000         \$\$,500,000         \$\$,500,000         \$\$,500,000         \$\$,500,000         \$\$,500,000         \$\$,500,000	Blackwater Village	\$16,273,000	\$16,273,000	\$6,040,000	\$10,233,000	
North Elendale Diversion         \$9,236,846         \$9,236,846         \$9,236,846           Warkick Park Cravity Collection System         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700           Bethamy Forest         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300           New Castle County         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800           Southern Santary Sever Area         \$26,767,000         \$26,767,000         \$26,767,000           Christian River Force Main Rehabilitation - Segments 3 and 4         \$115,510,000         \$33,000,000         \$33,000,000           Santary Sever Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$1,500,000           Silverbrook Purp Station Upgrades         \$1,400,000         \$1,350,000         \$2,863,400         \$2,863,400           Northwest Region Septic Elimination         \$5,844,078         \$5,864,078         \$460,000         \$7,300,000           Martin Farms Sever Relocation         \$3,3344,017         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017           Southwood Acres LLC          \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,228,300         \$21,043,000           Green Project Reserve         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000	Briarwood Estates	\$4,631,363	\$4,631,363	\$4,631,363		
Warwick Park Gravity Collection System         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700         \$9,474,700           Bethamy Forcest         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300           New Castle County         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800           Southerm Sanitary Sever Area         \$26,767,000         \$26,767,000         \$26,767,000         \$26,767,000           Richardson Prates         \$2,200,000         \$31,500,000         \$33,000,000         \$33,000,000           Sanitary Sever Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$31,350,000           Sanitary Sever Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$2,283,400         \$2,283,400         \$2,883,400           Sanitary Sever Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000           Rayld Infiltration Basins - Von Croy Farm         \$2,883,400         \$2,883,400         \$2,883,400         \$2,883,400           Sectord WVTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$7,370,000         \$7,300,000         \$7,300,000         \$7,300,000           Setaford WVTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473           Southwood Acrese LLC         Yow of Dellmar         \$1,725,81	North Ellendale Diversion	\$9,236,846	\$9,236,846	\$9,236,846		
Betham Forest         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300         \$4,870,300           New Castle County         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800           Suthern Santary Sever Area         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800         \$3,770,800           Christina River Force Main Rehabilitation - Segments 3 and 4         \$115,210,000         \$33,000,000         \$33,000,000           Richardson Park Pump Station - Phase 2         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000         \$15,000,000           Sanitary Sever Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000           Silvebrook Pump Station Upgrades         \$1,400,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000           Town of Middletown         \$2,283,400         \$2,283,400         \$2,283,400           Northwest Region Septic Elimination         \$54,477,3000         \$7,300,000         \$1,350,000           Seaford         \$2,000,500         \$2,000,500         \$2,000,500         \$2,000,500           Seaford WWTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$7,370,000         \$7,300,000         \$3,344,017           Southwood Acres LLC         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473           Seaford Howard         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815           Southwood Acres LLC         \$1,824,473         \$	Warwick Park Gravity Collection System	\$9,474,700	\$9,474,700	\$9,474,700		
Indian River Acres       \$3,770,800       \$3,770,800       \$3,770,800       \$3,770,800         New Castle County       \$26,767,000       \$26,767,000       \$26,767,000       \$26,767,000         Southern Sanitary Sever Area       \$33,000,000       \$33,000,000       \$33,000,000       \$33,000,000         Christina River Force Main Rehabilitation - Ptase 2       \$15,549,000       \$15,000,000       \$15,000,000         Sanitary Sever Study and Repairs       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000       \$1,350,000       \$1,350,000         Silverbrook Pump Station Upgrades       \$1,400,000       \$1,350,000       \$1,350,000       \$1,350,000         Town of Middledown       \$2,200,000       \$2,000,500       \$2,000,500       \$2,000,500         City of Seaford       \$2,000,500       \$2,000,500       \$2,000,500       \$2,000,500         Saff of WWTF - Upgrade and Expansion       \$3,34,078       \$3,344,017       \$3,344,017       \$3,344,017         Southwood Acres LLC       Yump Station and Force Main       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473       \$1,223,000       \$1,043,000         Green Project Reserve       \$3,712,449       \$241,283,030       \$230,745,952       \$10,233,000       \$1,043,000         DNREC, Environmental Finance       Total       CWSRF Loan       Requested <t< td=""><td>Bethany Forest</td><td>\$4,870,300</td><td>\$4,870,300</td><td>\$4,870,300</td><td></td><td></td></t<>	Bethany Forest	\$4,870,300	\$4,870,300	\$4,870,300		
New Castle County         S26,767,000         S33,000,000         S1,350,000         S1,32,31,31,31,31,31,	Indian River Acres	\$3,770,800	\$3,770,800	\$3,770,800		
Southern Sanitary Sewer Area         \$226,767,000         \$226,767,000         \$326,767,000           Christina River Force Main Rebabilitation - Segments 3 and 4         \$115,210,000         \$33,000,000           Richardson Park Pump Station - Phase 2         \$15,549,000         \$15,000,000           Santary Sewer Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000           Silverbrook Pump Station Upgrades         \$2,200,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000           Rapid Infiltration Basins - Von Croy Farm         \$2,863,400         \$2,2863,400         \$2,200,500           Northwest Region Septic Elimination         \$5544,078         \$540,078         \$540,070         \$2,000,500           Seaford WUTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$7,370,000         \$7,300,000         \$7,300,000         \$7,300,000           Seaford WUTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$3,349,436         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017           Southored Alement Phase 3         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,043,000           Green Project Reserve         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$1,043,000           DNREC, Environmental Finance         \$1,64,99,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$	New Castle County					
Christina River Force Main Rehabilitation - Segments 3 and 4       \$115,210,000       \$333,000,000       \$333,000,000         Richardson Park Pump Station - Phase 2       \$15,549,000       \$15,000,000       \$15,000,000         Sanitary Sewer Study and Repairs       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000         Silvetrook Pump Station Upgrades       \$14,000,000       \$13,350,000       \$15,000,000         Town of Middletown       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000         Northwest Region Septic Elimination       \$2863,400       \$2,200,500       \$2,000,500         Northwest Region Septic Elimination       \$7,370,000       \$7,300,000       \$7,300,000         Martin Farms Sewer Stockation       \$3,394,407       \$3,344,017       \$3,344,017         Southwood Acres LLC       \$1,225,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815         Seter Replacement Phase 3       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,043,000         Green Project Reserve       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000         City of Midution       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000         Green Project Reserve       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$1,043,000       \$1,043,000	Southern Sanitary Sewer Area	\$26,767,000	\$26,767,000	\$26,767,000		
Richardson Park Pump Station - Phase 2       \$15,549,000       \$15,000,000       \$15,000,000         City of Newark       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000         Santary Sewer Study and Repairs       \$2,200,000       \$1,350,000       \$2,200,000       \$2,200,000         Silverbrook Pump Station Upgrades       \$15,000,000       \$1,350,000       \$1,350,000       \$1,350,000         Rapid Infiltration Basins - Von Croy Farm       \$2,863,400       \$2,863,400       \$2,2683,400       \$2,2683,400         Northwest Region Septic Elimination       \$584,078       \$584,078       \$440,000       \$2,000,500         Northwest Region Septic Elimination       \$3344,340       \$2,000,500       \$2,000,500       \$2,000,500         Seaford       \$2,000,500       \$7,300,000       \$7,300,000       \$7,300,000       \$7,300,000         Martin Farms Sever Relocation       \$3,344,473       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473         Summ of Delmar       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815         Sever Replacement Phase 3       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,043,000         Green Project Reserve       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$1,043,000	Christina River Force Main Rehabilitation - Segments 3 and 4	\$115,210,000	\$33,000,000	\$33,000,000		•
City of Newark         S2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$1,350,000         \$2,000,500         \$2,	Richardson Park Pump Station - Phase 2	\$15,549,000	\$15,000,000	\$15,000,000		
Santary Sewer Study and Repairs         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000         \$2,200,000           Silverbook Pump Station Upgrades         \$1,400,000         \$1,350,000         \$1,350,000           Town of Middletown         \$2,863,400         \$2,863,400         \$2,683,400           Rapid Infiltration Basins - Von Croy Farm         \$2,863,4078         \$584,078         \$584,078           Northwest Region Septic Elimination         \$584,078         \$52,000,500         \$2,000,500           Seaford WTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$7,370,000         \$7,300,000         \$7,300,000           Martin Farms Sever Relocation         \$3,349,436         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017           Southwood Acres LLC         Pump Station and Force Main         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473           Sewer Replacement Phase 3         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815           Staty and Repairs         \$331,712,449         \$241,283,003         \$230,745,952         \$10,233,000           Green Project Reserve         \$1,600,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000           City of Wilnington         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         <	City of Newark					
Silverbrook Pump Station Upgrades       \$1,400,000       \$1,350,000         Town of Middletown       \$2,863,400       \$2,863,400         Northwest Region Septic Elimination       \$284,078       \$460,000         Northwest Quarant - Sewer System Improvements       \$2,000,500       \$2,000,500         Seaford       \$2,000,500       \$7,300,000         Seaford WWTF - Upgrade and Expansion       \$7,370,000       \$7,300,000         Martin Farms Sewer Relocation       \$3,349,436       \$3,344,017         Southwood Acres LLC       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473         Pump Station and Force Main       \$1,824,473       \$1,725,815         Stinzeplacement Phase 3       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815         Total       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473         Pump Station and Force Main       \$1,824,473         Stinzeplacement Phase 3       \$1,725,815         Total       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815         Project Reserve       \$1,600,000         Stilk of Wilmington       \$1,600,000         Adams Street Green Infrastructure       \$1,600,000         Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Bueneficial Reuse Main       \$6,499,088         Southern Delaware Communities       \$247,000       \$247,000         Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Bueneficial Reuse Ma	Sanitary Sewer Study and Repairs	\$2,200,000	\$2,200,000	\$2,200,000		
Town of Middletown         S2,863,400         S2,863,40,00         S2,863,40,00         S2,863,40,00	Silverbrook Pump Station Upgrades	\$1,400,000	\$1,350,000	\$1,350,000		
Rapid Infiltration Basins - Von Croy Farm         \$2,863,400         \$2,800,500         \$2,0	Town of Middletown					
Northwest Region Septic Elimination         \$584,078         \$584,078         \$584,078         \$460,000           Northeast Quadrant - Sewer System Improvements         \$2,000,500         \$2,000,500         \$2,000,500           Seaford         \$3,349,436         \$3,344,017         \$3,340,000         \$7,300,000           Martin Farms Sewer Relocation         \$3,344,436         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017           Southwood Acres LLC         Pump Station and Force Main         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473           Sewer Replacement Phase 3         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$10,233,000         \$1,043,000           Green Project Reserve         \$331,712,449         \$241,283,030         \$23,745,952         \$10,233,000         \$1,043,000           DNREC, Environmental Finance         Total         Project Cost         CWSRF Loan Requested         Supplemental Funding         EC Funding           DNREC, Environmental Finance         \$1,600,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4,600,000         \$4	Rapid Infiltration Basins - Von Croy Farm	\$2,863,400	\$2,863,400	\$2,683,400		
Northeast Quadrant - Sewer System Improvements         \$2,000,500         \$2,000,500         \$2,000,500           City of Seaford         Seaford WWTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$7,370,000         \$7,300,000         \$7,300,000           Martin Farms Sewer Relocation         \$3,349,436         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017           Southwood Acres LLC         Pump Station and Force Main         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473           Town of Delmar         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815           Sever Replacement Phase 3         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815           Total Wastewater         \$331,712,449         \$241,283,030         \$10,43,000           Green Project Reserve         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000           City of Wilmington         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000           Adams Street Green Infrastructure         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots         \$735,821         \$735,821         \$735,821         \$735,821         \$5735,821         \$5735,821         \$5735,821         \$5735,821         \$5735,821         \$54,499,088         \$	Northwest Region Septic Elimination	\$584,078	\$584,078	\$460,000		
City of Seaford         Seaford         Seaford         Seaford WWTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$7,370,000         \$7,300,000         \$1,023,000         \$1,043,000	Northeast Quadrant - Sewer System Improvements	\$2,000,500	\$2,000,500	\$2,000,500		
Seaford WWTF - Upgrade and Expansion         \$7,370,000         \$7,300,000         \$7,300,000           Martin Farms Sewer Relocation         \$3,349,436         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017         \$3,344,017           Southwood Acres LLC         Pump Station and Force Main         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473           Sewer Replacement Phase 3         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,0233,000         \$1,043,000           Green Project Reserve         \$331,712,449         \$241,283,030         \$230,745,952         \$10,233,000         \$1,043,000           DNREC, Environmental Finance         Total         CWSRF Loan         Base or Corpus Funding         Supplemental Funding         EC Funding           Offeren Project Reserve         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$1,600,000	City of Seaford					
Martin Farms Sewer Relocation       \$3,349,436       \$3,344,017       \$3,344,017       \$3,344,017         Southwood Acres LLC       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473         Pump Station and Force Main       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473       \$1,824,473         Sewer Replacement Phase 3       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815       \$1,725,815         Total Wastewater       \$331,712,449       \$241,283,030       \$230,745,952       \$10,233,000       \$1,043,000         Green Project Reserve        Total Project Cost       CWSRF Loan Requested       Supplemental Funding       EC Funding         DNREC, Environmental Finance       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000       \$4,500,000         Green Project Reserve       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000         City of Wilmington        \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000         Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots       \$735,821       \$735,821       \$735,821       \$735,821       \$3735,821       \$3735,821       \$54,499,088       \$6,499,088       \$6,499,088       \$6,499,088       \$6,499,088       \$6,499,088       \$6,499,088       <	Seaford WWTF - Upgrade and Expansion	\$7,370,000	\$7,300,000	\$7,300,000		
Southwood Acres LLC         Statum on and Force Main         \$1,824,473         \$1,832,473         \$1,832,473         \$1,832,473         \$1,832,400         \$1,833,000         \$1,833,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,043,000 </td <td>Martin Farms Sewer Relocation</td> <td>\$3,349,436</td> <td>\$3,344,017</td> <td>\$3,344,017</td> <td></td> <td></td>	Martin Farms Sewer Relocation	\$3,349,436	\$3,344,017	\$3,344,017		
Pump Station and Force Main         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473         \$1,824,473           Town of Delmar         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,0233,000         \$1,043,000         \$1,001,000         \$1,001,000         \$1,001,000         \$1,001,000         \$1,001,000         \$1,001,000         \$1,001,000         \$1,001,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000	Southwood Acres LLC					
Town of Delmar         Sever Replacement Phase 3         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,233,000         \$1,043,000           Green Project Reserve         Total         Total         CWSRF Loan         Base or Corpus Funding         Supplemental Funding         EC Funding           DNREC, Environmental Finance         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$1,600,000	Pump Station and Force Main	\$1,824,473	\$1,824,473	\$1,824,473		
Sewer Replacement Phase 3         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815         \$1,725,815           Total Wastewater         \$331,712,449         \$241,283,030         \$230,745,952         \$10,233,000         \$1,043,000           Green Project Reserve         Total Project Cost         CWSRF Loan Requested         Base or Corpus Funding         Supplemental Funding         EC Funding           DNREC, Environmental Finance         \$4,500,000	Town of Delmar					
Total Wastewater         \$331,712,449         \$241,283,030         \$230,745,952         \$10,233,000         \$1,043,000           Green Project Reserve         Total Project Cost         CWSRF Loan Requested         Base or Corpus Funding         Supplemental Funding         EC Funding           DNREC, Environmental Finance         \$4,500,000 <td< td=""><td>Sewer Replacement Phase 3</td><td>\$1,725,815</td><td>\$1,725,815</td><td>\$1,725,815</td><td></td><td></td></td<>	Sewer Replacement Phase 3	\$1,725,815	\$1,725,815	\$1,725,815		
Green Project ReserveApplicant / Project NameTotal Project CostCWSRF Loan RequestedBase or Corpus FundingSupplemental FundingEC FundingDNREC, Environmental Finance Green Project Reserve\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000Green Project Reserve\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000City of Wilmington Adams Street Green Infrastructure\$1,600,000\$1,600,000\$1,600,000Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main\$6,499,088\$6,499,088\$6,499,088Southern Delaware Communities Colonial Estates MHP\$247,000\$247,000\$247,000\$247,000Total GPR\$13,581,909\$13,581,909\$10\$0	Total Wastewater	\$331,712,449	\$241,283,030	\$230,745,952	\$10,233,000	\$1,043,000
Applicant / Project NameTotal Project CostCWSRF Loan RequestedBase or Corpus FundingSupplemental FundingEC FundingDNREC, Environmental Finance Green Project Reserve\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000Green Project Reserve\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000City of Wilmington Adams Street Green Infrastructure\$1,600,000\$1,600,000\$1,600,000Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main\$6,499,088\$6,499,088\$6,499,088Southern Delaware Communities Colorial Estates MHP\$247,000\$247,000\$247,000\$247,000Total GPR\$13,581,909\$13,581,909\$10\$10\$10,233,000\$10,43,000	Green Project Reserve					
Applicant / Project NameTotal Project CostCWSKF Loan RequestedCorpus FundingSupplemental FundingEC FundingDNREC, Environmental Finance Green Project Reserve\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000\$4,500,000City of Wilmington Adams Street Green Infrastructure\$1,600,000\$1,600,000\$1,600,000\$1,600,000Town of Millsboro Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots\$735,821\$735,821\$735,821\$735,821Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main Southern Delaware Communities Colonial Estates MHP\$247,000\$247,000\$247,000Total GPR\$13,581,909\$13,581,909\$13,581,909\$10\$10,233,000		Tabal		Base or	Cumulanantal	
Project Cost         Requested         Funding         Funding           DNREC, Environmental Finance         Green Project Reserve         \$4,500,000	Applicant / Project Name	Iotal	CWSRF Loan	Corpus	Supplemental	EC Funding
DNREC, Environmental Finance         Statistics           Green Project Reserve         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000           City of Wilmington         \$1,600,000         \$4,500,000           Adams Street Green Infrastructure         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000           Town of Millsboro         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots         \$735,821         \$735,821           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088           Southern Delaware Communities         \$247,000         \$247,000           Colonial Estates MHP         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909           Total GPR         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$10,230,000         \$10,43,000		Project Cost	Requested	Funding	Funding	
Green Project Reserve         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000           City of Wilmington         \$1,600,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000         \$4,500,000           Adams Street Green Infrastructure         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots         \$735,821         \$735,821         \$735,821         \$735,821           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088           Southern Delaware Communities         \$247,000         \$20,000         \$0         \$0	DNREC Environmental Einance					
City of Wilmington       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000         Adams Street Green Infrastructure       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000         Town of Millsboro       \$1,600,000       \$1,600,000         Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots       \$735,821       \$735,821         Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main       \$6,499,088       \$6,499,088         Southern Delaw are Communities       Colonial Estates MHP       \$247,000         Total GPR       \$13,581,909       \$13,581,909       \$0         \$345 294 388       \$254 864 930       \$244 327 861       \$10 233 000	Green Project Reserve	\$4 500 000	\$4 500 000	\$4 500 000		
Adams Street Green Infrastructure         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000         \$1,600,000           Town of Millsboro         Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots         \$735,821         \$735,821         \$735,821           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088           Southern Delaware Communities          \$247,000         \$247,000         \$247,000           Total GPR         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$10,43,000	City of Wilmington	φ+,000,000	φ-r,000,000	φ <b>-r</b> ,000,000		
Town of Millsboro         \$1,000,000         \$1,000,000           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots         \$735,821         \$735,821         \$735,821           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088           Southern Delaware Communities         \$247,000         \$247,000         \$247,000           Colonial Estates MHP         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$0         \$0           Total         \$345 294 388         \$254 864 930         \$244 377 861         \$10 233 000         \$1 043 000	Adams Street Green Infrastructure	\$1 600 000	\$1 600 000	\$1 600 000		
Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots         \$735,821         \$735,821         \$735,821           Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088           Southern Delaware Communities         \$247,000         \$247,000         \$247,000           Colonial Estates MHP         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$0           Total GPR         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$10         \$0	Town of Millsboro	φ1,000,000	ψ1,000,000	φ1,000,000		
Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088         \$6,499,088           Southern Delaware Communities         \$247,000         \$247,000         \$247,000           Colonial Estates MHP         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$0         \$0           Total GPR         \$345,294,358         \$254,864,930         \$247,861         \$10,233,000         \$10,43,000	Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Water PS and Pivots	\$735 821	\$735 821	\$735 821		
Southern Delaware Communities         \$247,000         \$247,000         \$247,000           Colonial Estates MHP         \$247,000         \$247,000         \$247,000           Total GPR         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$0         \$0           Total         \$345,294,358         \$254,864,939         \$346,327,861         \$10,233,000         \$1,043,000	Sussex Central HS Reclaimed Beneficial Reuse Main	\$6 499 088	\$6 499 088	\$6 499 088		
Colonial Estates MHP         \$247,000         \$247,000         \$247,000           Total GPR         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$0         \$0           Total         \$345,294,388         \$254,864,939         \$34,377,861         \$10,233,000         \$1,043,000	Southern Delaware Communities	\$3,400,000	\$3,100,000	<i>4</i> 3,400,000		
Total GPR         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$13,581,909         \$0         \$0           Total         \$345,294,358         \$254,864,930         \$0         \$0         \$0	Colonial Estates MHP	\$247 000	\$247 000	\$247 000		
Total \$345.294.358 \$254.864.930 \$240.377.861 \$40.233.000 \$4.033.000	Total GPR	\$13 581 909	\$13 581 909	\$13 581 909	\$0	\$0
	Total	\$345 294 358	\$254 864 939	\$244 327 861	\$10 233 000	\$1 043 000

Note: These IUP Project Estimates are based on original Notices of Intent (NOIs) or Application Submitted and are subject to change with final applications and binding commitments. Additionally, should project(s) noted for Emerging Contaminants be determined ineligible, the CWSRF reserves the right to solicit additional Emerging Contaminant projects for the balance of the grant.

### V. Interest Rates and Loan Terms

The size and complexity of the CWSRF and DWSRF underscore the need to routinely analyze and track financial conditions and periodically evaluate various Fund management options. Such an analysis was recently completed by our financial management analysts in consultation with the State's financial advisory consultant, PFM, LLC.

For the purpose of this policy, loan documents shall set forth provisions for the borrower to pay to the Department on the principal amount drawn down and outstanding from the date(s) drawn, interest and an administrative fee (collectively, interest and the administrative fee are referred to as "Fee" in the loan documents).

The payments of principal and interest are deposited into the CWSRF and DWSRF respectively. The administrative fee is deposited separately into the CWSRF or DWSRF Non-Federal Administrative Account (NFAA), respectively, to support each of the SRF's program expenses, wastewater and drinking water quality related expenses, and innovative wastewater and drinking water quality programs. Funds within the respective NFAAs are accounted for separately from the CWSRF and DWSRF Capital Reserve Loan Funds. Each NFAA complies with EPA's Guidance on Fees Charged on CWSRF and DWSRF loans.

The current joint interest rate policy went into effect on March 1, 2023. Project affordability criteria and interest rates apply to new public, private/public use, investor-owned, and private/private use CWSRF and DWSRF loan applications until the policy is revised.

- Interest plus fee rates shall be set at 2.0 percent per annum.
- Administrative Fees shall be set at 50 percent the overall interest rate.
- Interest plus fee rates for all Lead Service Line Replacement loans shall be set at 0.0 percent per annum.
- A lower interest rate may be made available based on projected residential user rates as a percentage of Median Household Income (MHI) above 1.5 percent for a single wastewater or drinking water provided utility, and 3.0 percent for a combined wastewater and drinking water provided utility, only after other alternatives such as extended repayment terms, principal forgiveness or supplemental grants are exhausted.
- Should any municipal applicant demonstrate that the municipal bond rate available to its organization is lower than the collective interest rate and administrative fee set by this policy, then DNREC may match the lower bond rate by adjusting the interest rate.
- Should US Tax Reform (or other regulatory changes) have an impact on the pricing of tax-exempt bonds and their relative value to taxable bonds, this policy will be reviewed and adjusted.

Administrative Accountability and Annual Review Requirements:

 No less frequently than annually, Environmental Finance will perform a financial review of the CWSRF and DWSRF loan portfolios and make any changes to assure efficient use of funds and their perpetuity. This review shall consider factors such as the water quality and public health priorities, demand for financial assistance, availability and financial benefit of other assistance programs, state funding priorities, demographics and affordability and current market conditions.

• Environmental Finance will use financial modeling to understand how different loan terms and project types may impact the long-term growth of the CWSRF and DWSRF.

### (1) Benchmarks Used for this Policy:

The benchmarks for this policy were recommended by the State's financial advisory council PFM, LLC. The below is historical data of the Bond Buyer Index 11 (BBI 11-GO1) and Bond Buyer Index 20 (BBI 20-GO2) over the past three years as published weekly in the Bond Buyer https://www.bondbuyer.com/tag/bond-buyer-indexes. Additionally, average 30-year conventional mortgage rates, 20-year average commercial mortgage rates on farmland, and USDA loan rates were studied over the past three years. Environmental Finance will continue to monitor the below industry benchmarks to ensure compliance with offering a "rate between 0.0 percent and market rate." CWSRF regulations Section 35.3120 and DWSRF Section 35.3525 require that SRF loan interest rates be between zero percent and the market rate, as determined by the states. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) does not define market rate.

 CWSRF loan terms are set not to exceed the lessor of 30 years and the projected useful life of asset being financed. Amortization must commence not later than one year after projects are completed, and loans must be fully amortized upon expiration of the term of the loan.

### VI. Affordability Criteria

The CWSRF affordability criteria will be used to determine whether a project is eligible for principal forgiveness. Principal forgiveness awards will be determined based upon applications received through the annual CWSRF solicitation process and will be provided on a first come first serve basis, to the extent available. Section 603(i)(2) of the CWA requires the follow factors: MHI, unemployment rate, population trends of the borrower (or the project area if the project is located in a different jurisdiction) and other relevant data. Affordability criteria measures are the following:

<u>Income Data</u> – 1.5 percent of MHI will be considered affordable for a single wastewater or drinking water residential user rates; 3.0 percent of MHI will be considered affordable for combined wastewater and drinking water residential user rates. Delaware's affordability criteria accounts for existing system costs relative to Operations and Maintenance (O&M) and Capital, as well as proposed project O&M and Capital costs as a function of MHI (1.5 percent water or wastewater, 3.0 percent if both services are provided) for the project area. MHI is based on the most recent census data for the municipality or county. **CWSRF Ioan applicants whose MHI is not representative of the census data may provide documentation in order to obtain principal forgiveness or additional subsidization.** Documentation will be in the form of a representative income survey of the majority of the residents of the project area.

<u>Unemployment Data</u> – Nonpayment of residential wastewater and drinking water utility bills are normally directly associated with insufficient income and unemployment. Communities with greater than or equal to 3.4% unemployed population greater than or equal to 16 years in civilian labor force will be eligible for additional subsidy. Based on the percent above the threshold, additional subsidy may be provided to the extent available.

<u>Population Trends</u> – Wastewater utilities can be negatively impacted by decreasing population in relation to fixed assets and expenses that were designed/sized to service a larger customer base. Communities with greater than or equal to 12.1% vacant households would be eligible for additional subsidy. Based on the percent above the threshold, additional subsidy may be provided to the extent available.

### Or; if the applicant is deemed "disadvantaged" by one of these methods:

• Climate and Economic Justice Screening Tool:

https://screeningtool.geoplatform.gov/en/#3/33.47/-97.5

• The community has greater than or equal to 30.9% population living under 200% of poverty level

If considered disadvantaged under this method, additional subsidy consideration may be given on a percentage basis in concert with any wastewater rate increase (to the extent available). If an eligible additional subsidy recipient has received a Community Project Funding / Congressionally Directed Spending Item (Congressional Earmark) the total project cost net of the Congressional Earmark will be evaluated when applying subsidy amounts.

For projects that may seem unaffordable but are actually not cost effective, the CWSRF will review projects for the cost per EDU. Projects in which the cost per EDU is greater than \$25,000 will be subject to additional analysis. This may include: income surveys, value engineering, detailed budget review, and/or a capital contribution from the borrower.

### VII. Authority to Provide Additional Subsidization

DNREC has the authority to implement the CWSRF under 29 Del. C. Ch. 80, §8003. This authority includes any other allowable purposes including additional subsidization through principal loan forgiveness under the CWA, as amended.

As of March 1, 2024, DNREC has achieved grant compliance for the required 10% (minimum) loan forgiveness through FFY 2022 for the Base and Supplemental Grants. Delaware has allocated \$34 million in principal loan forgiveness to date and plans to allocate up to \$14 million in SFY 2024 (based on estimated grant award totals).

### VIII. Loans for Private Businesses, Private Landowners, Privately-Owned Projects

Private businesses, private landowners, and privately-owned centralized wastewater treatment projects are eligible under the Clean Water Act Section 320 Estuary Program as long as the project is within a national estuary and consistent with the Comprehensive Conservation Management Plans (CCMPs); consistency to be determined by Environmental Finance staff.

### IX. Project Eligibilities

Ten percent (10%) of the annual Federal capitalization grants *must* be allocated towards projects that qualify as Green Project Reserve. The following is an overview of CWSRF project eligibility categories that meet EPA definition of Water Efficiency; Energy Efficiency; Green Infrastructure; and Environmentally Innovative.

Entities eligible for CWSRF assistance include: municipalities, State agencies, and non- profits for the construction of publicly owned treatment works defined in Section 212 of the CWA; public or private entities that implement projects under Delaware's Nonpoint Source Management Plans defined in Section 319 of the CWA; and public or private entities that implement projects under Delaware's Estuary Comprehensive Conservation Management Plans as defined in Section 320 of the CWA. Eligible assistance activities include:

• Planning and design activities that are reasonably expected to result in a capital project;

- Building activities that implement capital projects; and
- Water Efficiency, Energy Efficiency, Green Infrastructure, and Environmentally Innovative stand-alone projects are eligible; they do not need to be part of a larger capital improvement project.

### Water Efficiency

Water efficiency is the use of improved technologies and practices to deliver equal or better services with less water. Examples of water efficiency projects include:

- Installation of water meters;
- Retrofit or replacement of water using fixtures, fittings, equipment, or appliances;
- Efficient landscape or agricultural irrigation equipment;
- Systems to recycle gray water;
- Reclamation, recycling, and reuse of existing rainwater, condensate, degraded water, stormwater, and/or wastewater streams;
- Collection system leak detection equipment; and
- Development and initial distribution of public education materials

### Energy Efficiency

Energy efficiency includes capital projects that reduce the energy consumption of eligible water quality projects, or produce clean energy used by a treatment works defined in Selection 212 of the CWA. Clean energy includes wind, solar, geothermal, hydroelectric, and biogas combined heat and power systems. Examples of energy efficiency projects include:

- Energy efficient retrofits and upgrades to pumps and treatment processes;
- Leak detection equipment for treatment works;
- Producing clean power for 212 treatment works on site (wind, solar, hydroelectric, geothermal, biogas powered combined heat and power); and
- Pro-rata share of capital costs for offsite publicly owned clean energy facilities that provide power to a treatment works

### Green Infrastructure

Green Infrastructure includes a wide array of practices at multiple scales that manage wet weather to maintain and restore natural hydrology by infiltrating, evapotranspiring and capturing and using stormwater. On a regional scale, green infrastructure is the preservation and restoration of natural landscape features, such as forests, floodplains, and wetlands, coupled with policies such as infill and redevelopment that reduce overall imperviousness in a watershed. On the local scale green infrastructure consists of site- and neighborhood-specific practices, such as bioretention, trees, green roofs, porous pavements, and cisterns. In addition to managing rainfall, these green infrastructure technologies can simultaneously provide other benefits such as helping filter air pollutants, reducing energy demands, mitigating urban heat

islands, and sequestering carbon while also providing communities with aesthetic, recreational and natural resource benefits.

Examples of green infrastructure projects include:

- Implementation of comprehensive street tree or urban forestry programs, including expansion of tree box sizes to manage additional stormwater and enhance tree health;
- Implementation of green streets (combinations of green infrastructure practices in transportation rights-of-ways), for either new development, redevelopment, or retrofits;
- Implementation of water harvesting and reuse programs or projects, where consistent with State and local laws and policies;
- Implementation of wet weather management systems for parking areas which include: the incremental cost of porous pavement, bioretention, trees, green roofs, and other practices that mimic natural hydrology and reduce effective imperviousness at one or more scales;
- Establishment and restoration of riparian buffers, floodplains, wetlands, and other natural features; Downspout disconnection to remove stormwater from combined sewers and storm sewers; and
- Comprehensive retrofit programs designed to keep wet weather out of all types of sewer systems using green infrastructure technologies and approaches.

### X. CWSRF Financial Status

Delaware agrees to submit to EPA a Federal Financial Status Report – Standard Form 425 within 90 days after the end of each State fiscal year during the term of the Capitalization Grant Agreement.

### XI. Public Review and Comment

The PPL and IUP was made available to the Water Infrastructure Advisory Council (WIAC) and the public on March 20, 2024. A public hearing on the PPL and IUP was noticed to the Public Meeting Calendar on February 26, 2027. Newspaper notices were posted in the Delaware News Journal and Delaware State News on March 3 and March 10, 2024, informing the public of a Public Hearing to be held on March 20, 2024, to receive public comment on the 2024 PPL and IUP. The WIAC will meet on March 20, 2024, to review, approve, and recommend the PPL and IUP; subject to no adverse public comments received by April 19, 2024.

### XII. Assurances

### Required Reporting

Delaware will enter all projects funded into the EPA reporting database for the Office of Water State Revolving Funds (OWSRF) on an ongoing basis.

### Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA)

Delaware will enter the applicable FFATA reporting into the database (FSRS) for each loan designated as equivalency.

### Environmental and Financial Reviews

Delaware will meet environmental review requirements by complying with Section IV, paragraph G, of the Operating Agreement between the State of Delaware and the EPA, and Section V of the Regulations Governing the Administration of the CWSRF.

### **Binding Commitments**

Delaware will enter into binding commitments equal to at least one hundred twenty percent (120%) of each quarterly payment within one (1) year of receipt of that payment.

### Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)

To ensure compliance with this requirement, the CWSRF will review and approve the DBE solicitation efforts of the borrower / borrower's engineer for prime contractors as well as efforts of the subcontractors associated with each selected prime contractor.

### Davis Bacon Wage Rate Act Requirement

The CWSRF will require all treatment works projects to apply Davis Bacon wages.

### Signage

Projects receiving additional subsidization from BIL funds, or are funded as an equivalency project, will comply with the OMB and EPA Signage Guidance as summarized below:

• A physical sign displaying the official Building a Better America emblem and EPA logo will be placed at construction sites. The sign must be placed in an easily visible location that can be directly linked to the work taking place and must be maintained in good condition throughout the construction period.

### American Iron and Steel (AIS)

All treatment works projects are subject to Title VI of the CWA by requiring that all iron and steel products used for a project for construction, alteration, maintenance or repair of a public water system or treatment work are produced in the United States.

### Build America Buy America (BABA) Act

Equivalency projects are subject to BABA requirements.

### Single Audit

Equivalency projects are subject to the Federal Single Audit Act (SAA) 2 CFR 200 Subpart F, as a sub recipient of Federal Funds.

### Prohibition on Certain Telecommunication and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment

Equivalency projects are subject to the Prohibition on Certain Telecommunication and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment located in 2 CFR 200.216, as such regulation pertains to the project.

### All Assistance Agreements

All assistance agreements for the CWSRF are subject to the following:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d,
- Age Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq,
- Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, Oct. 18, 1972, P.L. 92-500, § 13, and Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq., as amended,
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794,
- Executive Order 11246, dated September 24, 1965, as amended by Executive Order 11375, dated October 13, 1967, and as supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations set forth at 41 C.F.R. Ch. 60,
- Executive Order 12898, dated February 11, 1994,
- Americans With Disabilities Act, 28 C.F.R. § 35.101 et seq, General Prohibitions Against Discrimination, 28 C.F.R. § 35.130, and all other regulations promulgated under Title II of the Americans With Disabilities Act,
- Nondiscrimination; Sexual Harassment.

### Expeditious and Timely Expenditures

To help ensure that more loans close on time and projects are completed as soon as possible, assistance has been made available through the below incentive grants and programs to facilitate CWSRF loan demand.

- <u>Wastewater Match Planning Grants</u> \$50k per project is available for feasibility studies to identify and evaluate wastewater needs, requiring a cash match.
- <u>Surface Water Matching Planning Grants</u> \$50k per project is available for feasibility studies to identify and evaluate surface water management needs, requiring a cash match.
- <u>Project Planning Advances</u> \$75k per project is available for the development of required PERs and EIDs necessary to apply for a CWSRF loan; up to \$75k is forgiven on the condition that the application closed on a CWSRF loan. If a CWSRF does not close due to specific reasons, the entire \$75k is forgiven.
- <u>Planning and Design Loans</u> Provide 0% Loans for Projects that are not Ready to Proceed. Loans to allow funding for design and planning not covered under planning advances grant. Loan will be combined with the loan request for capital portion of the project.
- <u>Wastewater Asset Management Grants</u> Up to a \$100k grant is available to assist with the development of an asset management plan.
- <u>Septic Rehabilitation Grants (5-year Pilot)</u> Up to \$1,000,000 from Non-Federal Administrative Account and up to \$500,000 per year from the Clean Water Trust available to individual homeowners for the rehabilitation or replacement of failing septic systems.

• <u>WIAC Subcommittees</u> –Subcommittees were formed to discuss and facilitate a path forward for helping loans close on time and to help ensure that closed projects are completed on time. Subcommittee recommendations will be made to the full WIAC for consideration and implementation.

### First Use for Enforceable Requirements Certification

Delaware certifies that all of its municipal facilities are in substantial compliance with their current NPDES permits.

### Program Pace Requirement

The indicator for program pace, "Loans as a Percentage of Funds Available," is calculated by dividing the total amount of executed loans by the total amount of funds available for projects. This indicator shows whether a State is using its available funds in an expeditious and timely manner. It compares the amount of closed loans to the total amount of funds available. One of the CWSRF's short-term goals is to maintain a cumulative program pace that exceeds 95 percent for signed binding loan commitments.

### Equivalency Designation Requirement

CWSRF Base Grant - \$3,683,000 will use the New Castle County Richardson Park Pump Station Phase II (\$15 Million in total will report \$3,683,000)

CWSRF Supplemental - \$10,233,000 will use the Sussex County Warwick Park Village Septic Elimination Project Phase II and Sussex County N Ellendale Diversion (Totals will be split among both projects and will report \$10,233,000)

CWSRF Emerging Contaminants - \$1,043,000 will use the City of Wilmington Dewatering Process Rehab project (\$3.4 Million in total will report \$1,043,000)

### XIII. CWSRF and DWSRF Federal Fund Transferability

Delaware reserves the right to transfer Capitalization Grant and loan repayment monies between the State's CWSRF and the DWSRF programs as necessary to ensure the full utilization of the Federal assistance.

### XIV. CWSRF Municipal and Green Projects - Funding List

Attachment A provides a list of wastewater and green projects that will be funded with CWSRF funds. The list includes the 2024 PPL Rank Order, PPL Year, PPL Score, Applicant Name, Project Name, Population Served, Waterbody/NPDES Permit, Total Project Cost, CWSRF Financing, and Type of Assistance.

### XV. Non–Federal Administration Account

Delaware has established a Non-Federal Administration Account (NFAA) funded by fifty percent of the overall interest collected as the administrative fee charged on CWSRF municipal loans. The fee is collected from the interest portion of municipal loan repayments over the term of each loan. The NFAA is accounted for and managed separately from the corpus of the CWSRF. Funds in the NFAA are not considered CWSRF program income due to the fact that Federal capitalization grants that originally funded the loans are financially closed-out prior to receiving fees from completed projects. Historically, the NFAA has been used to supplement the program administration allowance associated with each Federal capitalization grant, and to fund the salaries for other water quality positions in the Division of Water. Additionally, the NFAA is used for a number of innovative water quality programs that in part help to facilitate new CWSRF loan demand. The planned uses are consistent with EPA's Guidance on Fees Charged by States to Recipients of CWSRF Program Assistance, 40 CRF Part 35. A conservative estimate of the NFAA revenue and planned uses are provided in Attachment B.

Total annual revenue for the CWSRF NFAA in SFY2023 was \$3,545,545, which includes \$667,665 of CWSRF Federal Admin revenue. Total CWSRF NFAA Expenses were \$3,107,894, which include \$1,418,214 for EF activities; Water/Watershed technical program expenses \$589,239; and wastewater/surface-water grant expenses of \$1,100,442. The ending available fund balance for SFY2023 was \$7,566,387. Below is a list of the 2024 uses.

- CWSRF Program Administrative Expenses
- Contractual Groundwater Position
- Contractual Stormwater Position
- 8 Division of Water Positions
- Septic Rehabilitation Grant Program
- Community Water Quality Improvement Grants
- Wastewater Matching Planning Grants
- Stormwater Matching Planning Grants
- Wastewater Asset Management Grants
- Wastewater Planning Advances
- Wastewater Needs Assessment
- Stormwater Needs Assessment

The NFAA is reviewed semi-annually to ensure its sustainability before additional uses are considered. The CWSRF's Annual Report includes a description of the NFAA, fees charged, actual use, and the remaining balance in the account. All grant programs will be reviewed periodically for effectiveness in generating CWSRF loans.

### XVI. APPENDIX

- Attachment A 2024 CWSRF Wastewater & GPR Projects Funding List
- Attachment B Non-Fed Admin Current & Planned Uses
- Attachment C 2024 CWSRF Sources & Uses of Funds
- Attachment D Cumulative Binding Commitments & Disbursements
- Attachment E FFY 2024 ACH Payment Schedule
- Attachment F 2015 PPL SOP

FFY 20	)24 CV	VSRF	Wastewater and S	Stormwater Projects							
PPL Year	PPL Year Rank	PPL Score	Applicant	Project Name	Population Served	Waterbody / NPDES Permit	Total Project Cost	GPR Category	GPR Eligibility	CWRF Financing	CWA Project Type
2021	5	84	Lewes Board of Public Works	Cape Henlopen State Park Sewer Extension	613	Inland Bays - Lewes-Rehoboth Canal NPDES DE0021512	\$3,875,000	N/A	N/A	\$3,875,000	212
Descript State Par wastewa quality im will be re facilities a Pump Sta current d 137,500 Station N	tion of F rk, and p ter treat provem placed v above th ation to esign pr gpd. In a lo. 83 re	Project a poump all ment face ent to the with a nei- ne flood the exist ractices addition, pach 80%	and Problem: The purp of its wastewater into th sility thereby eliminating si le Inland Bays/Atlantic O wily constructed pump si plain elevation including si ing BPW Pump Station I for wastewater facilities, the electrical and flow m 6 of 137,500 gpd (i.e., 1 <sup>o</sup>	ose of the project is to elimir e BPW sanitary sewer collec significant concentrations of cean watershed and the exc tation, and pump station stru a 0.4-meter (1.31-feet) sea lu No. 83. BPW Pump Station N and raise certain componen eter systems at Pump Stati 10,000 gpd), and would upgr	tion system v suspended so cellent ground evel rise cons ver rise cons vo. 83 will als ts above the on No. 83 will ade the pump	ng CHSP primary wastewater treatment facility (I vithin the Cape Shores development located on ( blids, biological oxygen demand, and nutrients fro water recharge area around the City of Lewes. T ase flow capacity, replace damaged and outdate ideration. A new 4-inch to 6-inch force main and o be upgraded to increase capacity to accommo floodplain elevation. Initial improvements will upg be upgraded to accommodate the ultimate future station to accommodate 176,000 gpd.	mhoff Tank system) that c Cape Henlopen Drive – th om entering the groundwa he CHSP Main Pump Sta d equipment, meet currer short run of gravity sewer date projected flows from rade Pump Station No. 83 flow of 176,000 gpd. Futi	currently discha ter near the Lev tion, that currer nt design praction s will be constr the CHSP, repla from the currer ure improvement	rges via rapi tely be treat wes-Rehobo titly pumps fr ces for waste ucted to con ace damage nt capacity c tts would be	d infiltration basins (RIBs ted at the BPW advanced th Canal. This is a signifile om the primary WWTF to wavter facilities, and raise vey flows from the new C d and outdated equipmer of 82,000 gallons per day implemented when flows	) within the icant water o the RIBs, s the CHSP nt, meet (gpd) to s to Pump
2021	6	80	City of Seaford	Seaford WWTF - Upgrade & Expansion of Selected Improvements	8,000	Chesapeake Bay - Nanticoke River NPDES DE0020265	\$7,370,000	N/A	N/A	\$7,300,000	212
Descript Report (F those red Improver Primary ( and Storn Seaford V WWTF (I	tion of F PER) on commen nents, Ir Clarifiers mwater WWTF. biologica	Project a July 26 dations offluent P s, New S Manage The upg al syster	and Problem: The City 2017, for Seaford WNT provided in the PER doc tumping Station Rehabilit eptage and Leachate Hi- ment design related to P grade and expansion imp n, etc.) will be upgraded	of Seaford owns and operati F Upgrade & Expansion to a ument. The scope of improv tation and Improvements, Ne andling Facility located at Ex roposed Improvements, Sea rovements are being phase and expanded. At that point	es a wastewa a capacity of 3 ements plann aw Grit Remo isting Compo Level Rise M d to allow the the facility wil	ter treatment facility with a rated hydraulic capac 0 MGD. The PER was deemed acceptable to D ed for the current project includes the following I val / Handling Structure Including Flow Splitter B st Site, Electrical Power, Mechanical (HVAC) and fitigation Considerations related to Proposed Imp project to be more affordable and to address att I have a rated capacity of 3.0 MGD and treat to B	ity of 2.0 MGD. GMB prep NREC by email dated Ma Jpgrade and Expansion Ir tox and provisions for futur d Controls/SCADA improv provements. The proposed ition that some unit proce ENR effluent quality stand	pared and subm y 2, 2019. The of nprovements: H re Secondary S ements necess d project is the b sses are exhibition ards.	itted to DNR design of sel leadworks S creening Eq ary to serve first step to L ting. At a late	EC a Preliminary Engine ected common elements tructure and Primary Scr uipment, Rehabilitation of Proposed Improvement . upgrading and expanding ar point in time the remain	ering will follow eening both areas, Site the nder of the
2021	13	60	New Castle County Department of Public Works	NCC Southern Sanitary Sewer Area - Expanded Treatment and Outfall	90,000	Chesapeake Bay - C & D Canal West N/A	\$26,767,000	N/A	N/A	\$26,767,000	212
Descript discharge Middletov disposal Penn Tre Appoquir 2021	tion of F e to the wn-Odes capacity eatment himink R	Project a Delawar ssa-Tow /. The pr plant, re plant, re tiver. Thi <b>30</b>	and Problem: The purp e River and increasing t msend urban area. The c routing the Port Penn fic is project will result in a r New Castle County Department of Public Works	ose of the project is to upgra he facilities current wastewa urrent wastewater flow in th se the treatment and dispos, w to the existing Water Farn het reduction of NPDES perm Richardson Park Pump Station - Phase 2	de the existin ter treatment e SSSA is ap al capacity to n Plant throug nitted outfalls <b>30,000</b>	g New Castle County Water Farm Treatment Pla capacity. The SSSA includes the majority of the proximately 1.15 million gallons per day (mgd) ar 5.0 mgd, which is the anticipated long-term dem tha new pump station and force main serving Pc and eliminate discharge into a TMDL impaired w Delaware Bay & Estuary - Delaware River N/A	Int, serving the County's S land areas within the Count d is expected to reach 1. and of the SSSA at year 2 rt Penn, effectively elimin ater course. \$15,549,000	Southern Sewer nty south of Chi 8 mgd within the 2050. Additional ating both the F	Service Are esapeake an e next four y- ly, the project ort Penn an N/A	a (SSSA), including a ner id Delaware Canal and m ears, exceeding the curre tt will eliminate the existin d Water Farm discharges \$15,000,000	v prth of the ant ig Port ≩ to the 212
Descript improver Castle Co maximun FEMA flo ability to	tion of F nents. T ounty's n station ood plair provide	Project a he exist Christiar capacit , provid reliable,	and Problem: The purp ing Richardson Park Pur h River Force Main, the e y of 19.5 MGD. Phase 1 ing future safeguard and safe, and consistent wa	pose of the project is to comp mping Station was built in 19 existing Richardson Park sta of the project was complete resiliency in wastewater ser stewater service to the Rich.	blete the cons 52 and has un tion is curren d in 2019, prin vice to the re ardson Park \$	truction of the new Richardson Park Pump Static dergone multiple modifications since the origina ity the oldest major pump station facility in New C marily involving the construction of the new subs gion. The existing station has exceeded the inter Sewer Basin, which consists of an estimated pop	on, including the construct I construction. Considered astle County. The station urface pumping well; of wi nded service life and is ne ulation of 30,000 resident	ion of all vertica d as one of the t conveys an ave nich, the new lo ed of replacements and customer	Il assets, me five major pu erage of 4 m cation has b ent. The proj s.	echanical, electrical, and imp stations contributing illion gallons per day (MC een located out of the 10 lect will secure NCC Publ	site to New ≩D) with 0-year lic Works
2021	20	20	Kent County Levy Court Department of Public Works	US 13 Force Main Replacement Project - Puncheon Run to Rising	130,000	Delaware Bay & Estuary - St. Jones River NPDES DE 0020338	\$10,314,015	N/A	N/A	\$6,894,015	212
Descript The syst Town of I Canden DeIDOT through t south of age/mate DeIDOT roadway within the cross US the propy with KCL facilities. environm	tion of F em inclu Frederic Bypass projects he pipe by runnin souther Isaacs E erial of th projects widenin a limits c 13 and osed 30' C to inc The agriental, p	Project a des grad a). The . The pro- , from th in 2019 g from F n limits Branch. " he pipe. . The str g over th f the De proceed ' DIP an lude the recent ublic hea	and Problem: The Kent vity and force main facilit Delaware Department of ojects are directly adjace le Puncheon Run to the was 6.7 million gallons p Pump Station #14 at Isaa of the DelDOT project, s The infrastructure constr Given the age and main udy considered: Structu e existing sewer line. S IDOT projects with a new d along the new alignme d the 10° PVC portion of necessary sewer work i is currently being review alth, and safety impacts to	County Levy Court (KCLC) of ies that transmit sewage from Transportation (DelDOT) is in to each other and include thersection of SR 10 and Ri- ter day (mgd), ranging up to cs Branch is connected to th outh of Lochmeath Way. The ucted during the early 1970's tenance concerns with the ei- pot relocations due to unavo w 30° ductile iron pipe (DIP). It of the East Camden Bypas of ducting bypass system in their road construction con- red by DelDOT. This project within the project limits.	owns a count m throughout developing c roadway wid sing Sun Roa 8.7mgd, equa e 30° FM SS a 16° bypass s has recently xisting 30° PC to stresses i idable conflic The new 30° ss, then cross will be upgrad tracts along v is critical to n	y-wide sanitary sewer collection, conveyance and the county to the Kent County Wastewater Treat onstruction plans for Contract T201500202 – US ening and safety upgrades to US 13 and SR 10. d. The existing 30° FM SS is a prestressed conc ting to approximately 50 percent of all of the was . A valve on this pipe currently diverts flow from system includes a short section of 10° PVC pipe, experienced serious maintenance issues, incluu CP, a study was prepared through KCDPW and nduced by vibrations from construction equipmer is with the proposed DeIDOT drainage system. E FM SS will be located along the west side of US sing SR 10 to Rising Sun Road. As a part of this led to a 16° DIP to provide for system continuity with monetary reimbursement for work that would aaintaining the County's sewer infrastructure. The	d treatment system operat iment Plant in Frederica, Ia 13, Lochmeath Way to P KCDPW maintains a 30" H KCDPW maintains a 30" H rete cylinder pipe (PCCP) stewater treated at the Ket the pump station to a 16" running from a valve near ding pipe crown deteriorat DeIDOT to assess the ris nt, inadvertent hits by consi assed on the study's concl 13 from the Puncheon Ru work the 16" DIP from the and flow capability. DeIDC previously have been rece a result will be a transmiss	ed by the Kent ocated toward t uncheon Run C force main sanit that was install that County Wast bypass system. In the Isaacs Brach this facilit struction equipm usions, KCDPV in to the US 13 Isaacs Branch Jor Concurs with quired to remed ion line that will	County Dep he southern tonnector an ary sewer (f ed in 1970-1 ewater Treat The bypass anch pump s ruptures, d y due to con nent and add V proposes / East Camo pump statio this approac y conflicts w mitigate any	artment of Public Works i end of the county (just or d for Contract T2017095 FM SS) within the limits of 971. The average daily f tment Facility. A 16" duct system runs in the medi- tation to the median of U ie to sever gasses press struction of the above no ded live load stresses dur- replacing the existing 30" len Bypass intersection. I will be extended to com- th and is a preparing an - ith proposed DeIDOT dra y potential transportation,	(KCDPW). utside the 33 - East f the low le iron an of US S 13, just int and the ted e to PCCP It will then nect with agreement inage
2022	16	40	Town of Middletown	Rapid Infiltration Basins Von Croy Farm	3,798	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Appoquinimink River N/A	\$2,863,400	N/A	N/A	\$2,863,400	212
Descript MGD, av 3.5 MGD ft. of infilt Town has	<u>Description of Project and Problem</u> : Middletown owns and operates the Middletown WWTP with an 11.8-square-mile service area consisting of two sewer districts with 24 pump stations. The plant's current design flow is 2.5 AGD, average daily flow is approximately 1.6 MGD. The Town disposes of treated wastewater via spray irrigation and rapid infiltration basins. The Town is currently designing and building an upgrade to their WWTP to treat up to 3.5 MGD with expansion up to 5.0 MGD in the future. To dispose of this wastewater, the Town is proposing to construct 51 rapid infiltration basins on the parcel known as the Von Croy Farm. These RIBS will provide 590,400 sq. t. of infiltration surface equating to an estimated 1.775 MGD of infiltration. This project coupled with the Treated Effluent Pumping Station and Force Main to Water Farm #1 (NOI application submitted separately) will ensure the fown has sufficient disposal capacity for the foreseeable future.										

							r				1
2022	18	40	Town of Middletown	Northwest Region Septic Elimination	30	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Appoquinimink River N/A	\$584,078	N/A	N/A	\$584,078	212
Descript Town wil the pump	tion of l l also co o statior	Project onnect s n. All par	and Problem: The Tow everal commercial establ cels in the project area a	n of Middletown has been ap lishments on parcel 23-001.0 re within the Town limits.	proached by 10-084 which	the owner of parcel 23-028.00-248 to provide the are currently served by septic system. The propo	e property sewer service a osed improvements includ	as this property le a new 8-inch	utilizes a se sewer mair	eptic system. With this pro and improvements to the	iject, the ∋ pumps at
2022	20	20	Town of Middletown	Northeast Quadrant - Sewer System Improvements	173	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Appoquinimink River N/A	\$2,000,500	N/A	N/A	\$2,000,500	212
Descript intersect have sho Specifica applicatio	tion of B ion of B own that ations ar on has b	Project groad Str t this age nd Ten S been sul	and Problem: The Tow eet and Main Street in th ed infrastructure is a sour states Standards. By upg mitted to DNREC for rep	n of Middletown has, for seve e center of the Town's downt rce of infiltration and also has rading the system componer placement of the water distrib	eral years, co cown district a s numerous s nts, the Towr ution system	ontinues to replace old and aging infrastructure w and is the next area that is slated to be upgraded sags. This project will replace the existing sewer r will reduce infiltration, improve capacity, and ens in the northeast quadrant simultaneous with the	ithin targeted areas of the The project limits are cu nain and laterals with sew sure a resilient sewer syst sewer system replacement	Town. The nort rrently served by rer main and late tem to serve its in nt.	theast quad y truss pipe erals in con users. NOT	rant is an area northeast and clay pipe. CCTV inve pliance with the Town's S E: A separate DWSRF N	of the ∋stigations ờtandard Ol
2023	1	79	Sussex County Council	Warwick Park Area Pumpstation & Force main	1,183	Inland Bays - Indian River Bay N/A	\$2,350,000	N/A	N/A	\$1,225,000	212
Descript from the connection Road just hearing of required compliant expedite	tion of l existing on to Co at past th on the a followin ace with d conne	Project g Gull Po ounty se he Warw innexation innexation ing the pro- the PCS ection.	and Problem: The proje int collection system just wer. This intersection is t ick Park common area. T on. During the backgroun omulgation of the Pollutic and make an official app	ect consists of a sub-regional prior to their onsite lift station he proposed location for the The County is proposing to c d investigation, we discovere n Control Strategy (PCS) Re plication for a new operating	l pumpstation n that would new sub-reg omplete this ed that DNRE gulations. G permit reiters	and force main to serve Warwick Park, Warwick extend to the corner of Warwick Cove Way and F jonal pumpstation to serve the area. A new force phase 1 construction prior to the Warwick Park cr Co had contacted Gull Point in 2012, notifying the ull Point held a special general membership meet ating the 2012 notice. The property owners and th	Cove, and Gull Point. Th River Road connecting in main will be constructed ommunity (Phase 2) base m that their operating per ing where the Board shar le Board voted to include	is phase consis an existing grav from the pumpsi d on information mit would expire ed that DNREC Gull Point in the	ts of the co ity line from tation to an discovered in 5 years had recent county pro	nstruction of a gravity cor a Warwick Cove installed the existing gravity manhole d during our planning for the and plant upgrades would and plant upgrades would ty notified Gull Point to co oject and inquired about a	inection for a future in River he public d be me into n
2023	2	76	Sussex County Council	Blackwater Village	833	Inland Bays - Indian River Bay NPDES DE0050008	\$16,273,000	N/A	N/A	\$16,273,000	212
boundary establish Council, adjacent commun	y and al led a ref they ad to Blac ities/hor	lowing a ferendur lopted th kwater C mes and	mple time after the meetii n was scheduled and hel e Resolution creating the creek which discharges in eliminate existing septic	In or more than the required of on creating a new area to the new area. This project will no to the Indian River Bay. War systems.	ary. No requise an infection of the second s	ests were received, and the boundary presented strict. The referendum passed with a count of 91 iximately 238 existing on-site septic systems and Control Needs/Environmental Benefits: This is a s	to County Council for add in favor and 61 opposed. prevents another 38 from septic elimination project t	The results of the being constructor continue Suss	uired Resol ne referend ted for the sex County'	ution. With the boundary um were presented to Co vacant lots. This commun s efforts to serve existing	unty ity is
2023	4	68	Sussex County Council	Briarwood Estates	231	Inland Bays - Rehoboth Bay N/A	\$4,631,363	N/A	N/A	\$4,631,363	212
Descript area adja meeting the costs immediat commun	tion of I acent to provide and im tely adja ities/hor	Project Love C d enoug pacts to acent to mes and	and Problem: Install a g reek. The subdivision wa h interest for the County the community. The rest Love Creek which discha eliminate existing septic	gravity collection system and s recently annexed into the b to proceed with polling letters ults of the public hearing were rges into the Rehoboth Bay. systems.	conveyance boundary of t s. The letter e presented Water Pollu	system to existing gravity connection point to se he Sussex County Unified Sanitary Sewer Distric was developed and distributed to the entire comm to County Council and the annexation was appro- tion Control Needs/Environmental Benefits: This i	rve the existing Briarwood t. The community request uunity. The results from th ved. This will remove app s a septic elimination proj	d Estates comme ed information b e polling letter s roximately 66 ex ect to continue s	unity. This o le presente upported a kisting on-si Sussex Col	community is in the West i d at their annual meeting, public hearing to be held ite septic systems, some unty's efforts to serve exis	Rehoboth this to explain sting
2023	6	60	City of Wilmington	Wilmington WWTP Main Switchgear & Electrical Substations – Phase 1	70,898	Piedmont - Shellpot Creek NPDES DE0020320	\$12,260,000	N/A	N/A	\$12,260,000	212
Descripti - Demolit - Demolit - Comple - Comple - Coordir - New Ec - Commis Additiona	tion and tion and tion and te insta te insta te insta nation, <i>I</i> quipmen ssioning al substa	Project I disposa I disposa Illation o Illation o Arc flash nt will full g of new ation rep	and Problem: This proj il of all existing Switchgei il of all existing Substatio f new 12kV Switchgear P f new substation Platform a new metering and cor and short circuit analysis y integrate with plant SC. Equipment. lacement is planned as a	ect is Phase 1 of a multi-phas ar and appurtenances. n #1 and appurtenances. latform, Equipment and Encl n, Equipment and Enclosure. trol equipment. s after installation. ADA system. a subsequent separate phase	se Wilmingto osure.	n WWTP Main Switchgear & Electrical Substation	ns Project. Phase 1 projec	ot scope include	is:		
2023	7	60	Sussex County Council	North Ellendale Diversion	2,132	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Cedar Creek N/A	\$9,236,846	N/A	N/A	\$9,236,846	212
Descript Town of pumpsta extendin	tion of I George tion 91 I g eastw	Project town wa located o vard to a	and Problem: The goal stewater facility preventin off Beach Highway in Elle n existing 6" force main c	of the project is freeing up tr ng the need for the Town to p endale and pumpstation 92 in oming from New Market Villa	eatment plar perfom1 upgr New Marke age. From the	It capacity in Georgetown which is providing treat ades and improvements currently required in ord t Village. The flow from PS91 will be redirected th are it will continue as an 8" along Reynolds Pond	ment services for the gre er to accept additional flo rough a new 6" force main Road to Isaacs Road. At	ater Ellendale S w to the facility. n installed in Kin which point it wil	ewer Distric This will rec g Alley and Il manifold i	ct Area. Removing flow fro quire upgrades the County Jester A venue, eventua nto the County owned for	om the ⁄'s existing lly ce main

extending eastward to an existing 6" force main coming from New Market Village. From there it will continue as an 8" along Reynolds Pond Road to Isaacs Road. At which point it will manifold into the County owned force main coming from Slaughter Beach. This force main will extend south to the Artesian wastewater facility SRRF. This project will utilize existing infrastructure by way of re-direction and be combined with the force main from Slaughter Beach reducing the overall cost of the project. Water Pollution Control Needs/Environmental Benefits: This is a treatment capacity re-allocation project whereas the existing flow from the entire northern Ellendale/New Market Area of the Sussex County Unlifed Sanitary Sewer District is removed from the Town of Georgetown wastewater facility. This preserves capacity and negates the need for the Town of Georgetown to undertake treatment and disposal system improvements at this time.

2023	9	53	Southwood Acres LLC	Southwood Acres SWAII Pump Station & Force Main Project	400	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Murderkill River N/A	\$1,824,473	N/A	N/A	\$1,824,473	320
Descript force ma and Sout wastewa treatmen these con main at M	Description of Project and Problem: This project consists of the conversion of two communities' sewer effluent (17,770 GPO) from being processed by an on-site wastewater treatment facility, to collection and pumping via force main to the Kent County Wastewater facility. The current on site wastewater processing plant is a Rotating Biological Contactor that processes the sewer effluent of the Southwood Acres MHP (a low-income community) and Southern Meadows (55+) communities and deposits the treated water in Rapid Infiltration Basins. The age and effectiveness of this system has reached its ability to adapt and meet the new regulations and limits of wastewater treatment permitting. The cost to renovate this treatment plant to meet the new standards is prohibitive in comparison to a contract user relationship with the Kent County Wastewater Treatment Facility. If this current treatment system continues to operate at below standard protocols, a potential health and environmental issue would be imminent by DNREC standards of wastewater treatment, as well as deteriorated services to the residents of these communities. With this project, the sewer effluent from the communities existing gravity sewer system will collect at the pump station and be transferred by a 4" force main to an interconnect with the Kent County 24" force main at McGinnis Pond and Lexington Mill Roads.										
2023	10	50	City of Wilmington	Digester Improvements Flare	70,898	Piedmont - Shellpot Creek NPDES DE0020320	\$7,560,100	N/A	N/A	\$7,560,100	212
Descript remote fr - Evaluat - Detailec - Permits - Rerouti - Cleanoo - Facility - Architec - Digeste - Pipeline - Electric - Gas bu	escription of Project and Problem: Work for the new Flare House includes professional and subcontractor labor, and material for full replacement of existing flares with two (2) 100%-capacity flares. They will be located amote from buildings and overhead power lines to comply with current codes and standards. Four locations are currently under review. Scope items below may change, depending on final site selection. Scope will include: Evaluation and site selection, design basis (capacity, operating/control philosophy, utilities, air permit requirements, etc.), system modelling, and process design. Detailed design, procurement of long lead items (LLIs), contracting and preparation of bid documents. Permits (local building authority and air emissions). Demolition of existing burners, associated piping, controls and electrical, and any necessary structures, buildings, obstructions. Rerouting of utilities, piping, or other site features (if needed, based on site selection). Facility modifications, etc.) and site work. Architectural and structural repairs, modifications, and finishes (if needed, based on site selection). Digester gas system piping network optimization and associated system modifications to accommodate new flare location. Pipeline routing and tiens from digester gas system piping network. Electrical equipment and control system upgrades. Gas burner system installation, field testing, startup and performance testing.										
2023	11	45	Town of Delmar	Delmar Sewer Replacement Phase 3	5,816	Chesapeake Bay - Wicomico River NDPES # MD0020532	\$1,725,815	N/A	N/A	\$1,725,815	212
Descript infiltratior replacem Fund. By	tion of F n(I&I) stu nent proj r comple	Project a udies tha ject. The sting thes	and Problem: This project at have been completed of first two phases are located se projects, we will signif	ect will rehabilitate and replac within the Town. The Town h ated in the Maryland side of [ icantly reduce the I&I flows b	e aged grav as experienc Delmar. The eing receive	ity sewer mains and manholes within the Delawa seed ±50% l&l flows to their Wastewater Treatmen first phase is beginning construction this spring, v d by the WWTP.	re side of the Town of Del t Plant (WWTP) in recent while the second phase ha	lmar. This projec years. This proje as applied for fur	t is the res ect is the th nding throu	ult of several inflow and iird phase of a Town wide gh the Maryland State Re	sewer volving
2023	12	30	New Castle County Department of Public Works	Christina River Force Main Rehabilitation - Segments 3 and 4	330,000	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Delaware River N/A	\$115,210,000	N/A	N/A	\$33,000,000	212
Descript 1,800 LF terminatii Starting a South Ma via trencl	tion of F of new ng near at the ter arket Str hless ter	Project a 78-inch the southerminatio reet. Fro chnologi	and Problem: The Cour force main piping startin, th exit ramp for Heald Sti n point of Segment 3, Se m just west of the South ies, of approximately 2,0	nty is submitting this NOI for i g at the existing CRFM on the reet. The force main will be in agment 4 involves the installa Market Street exit ramp onto 00 LF of new 36-inch force m	the initial crit e southerly s stalled via o tion of appro Route 495, ain extendin	ical phases of the overall Christina River Force M ide of the Norfolk Southern rail line and approxim pen cut across Route 9 and continue along the H iximately 3,800 LF of 78-inch force main piping us the force main will extend northward another app g from the Market Street Pump Station and tying	Main (CRFM) Rehabilitatio nately 550 feet east of Rou eald Street exit ramp roar sing trenchless technologi roximately 2,000 LF to the into the new force main in	n Project. Segmute 9, extending d, then south alo es south along H e existing CRFM installed along He	ent 3 involv in a southe ng Heald S leald Stree . Segment eald Street.	ves the installation of appr rly and westerly direction street to the termination po et, crossing both Rogers R 4 also includes in the inst	oximately and bint. Road and allation,
2023	13	40	Kent County Levy Court Department of Public Works	Pipeline Condition Assessment (Pipe>12 in Diameter)	150,000	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Murderkill River NPDES DE 0020338	\$4,300,000	N/A	N/A	\$2,300,000	212
Descript identified phase of engineer of cost es	tion of F ten (10 the con . Major t stimates	Project a ) distinc dition as tasks inc and pip	and Problem: The pipel t inspection areas for fiel ssessment work is \$4,30 clude (1) selection of field seline rehabilitation priori	line condition investigation pr d investigations which will be 0,000. The project is anticipa d investigation technology alt ties. The deliverables will incl	oject will inc completed u ted to take a ernatives for ude interim r	ude gravity sewer systems and wastewater force using a combination of electromagnetic, CCTV ter pproximately 24 months, excluding the time requi each location; (2) preparation of documents and reports, drawings, permits, and a final report.	mains where sewer pipe chnologies or other techni- red to advertise a Reque acquisition of permits; (3)	lines are 12 inch ologies, if availat st for Proposals o collection of fiel	es in diame ble. The es and award d data and	eter and larger. The JMT r timated budget for the invo a contract to the consultin data analysis; and (4) dev	eport estigation ig velopment
2023	14	40	Kent County Levy Court Department of Public Works	Pipeline Condition Assessment (Pipe<12 in Diameter)	150,000	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Murderkill River NPDES DE 0020338	\$4,100,000	N/A	N/A	\$3,100,000	212
Descript diameter determin the small excluding Funds of	tion of F pipe). T ation; (2 diamete g the tim \$1,000,	Project a The majo () complete er pipe in the requir (000 ma	and Problem: This pipe writy of Kent County's smu- etion of data gaps where ncluding recommendatio ed to advertise a Reques y be contributed toward f	line condition study & investi- all diameter pipes are associa possible; (3) prioritization & ns for pipe rehabilitation prior st for Proposals and award a the project subject to Levy Co	gation project ated with gra strategy for f ities. The de contract to t purt approva	et will include gravity collection systems and trans vity collection systems. Major tasks for the study ield investigation with cost estimates; (4) complet liverables will include interim reports, drawings, p he consulting engineer. The estimated budget for I.	mission force mains of pi r and investigation include ion of field investigation; ermits, and a final report. the combined investigation	bes less than 12 (1) Collection of and (5) summaria The project is an on phase of the of the of the of the of the of t	inches in o of data, dat zation of fir nticipated t condition a	diameter (considered to be a analysis, and data gap Idings on condition assess o take approximately 24 m ssessment work is \$4,100	e small sment for nonths, 1,000.
2023	17	50	City of Wilmington	11st Sewage Pump Station Replacement and Upgrade	70,898	Piedmont - Brandywine Creek NPDES DE0020320	\$6,250,000	N/A	N/A	\$6,250,000	212
Descript as 7 MGI City's Loi useful life upgrade flowmete operating treatmen Rehabilit - Installat - Rehabil	tescription of Project and Problem: The City operates the 11th Street Pump Station to convey the majority of the City's raw sewage from the City to the treatment plant. During low flow periods the plant output can be as low s 7 MGD. The current large pumps are unable to effectively meet this low flow condition. Peak wet weather flows exceed 150 MGD. Maintaining a firm pumping capacity of at least 150 MGD at 11th Street is a critical part of the Sity's Long Term Control Plan. Numerous improvements have been made to this pump station over its history. However, it is nearly 70 years old, and several aspects of the pump station require significant upgrades to extend the seful life. The ability to perform these upgrades is impacted by limitations within the pump station and the discharge piping. Consequently, the City intends to construct a 11th Street Sewage Pump Station Replacement and parade that will provide significant operational benefits while also enabling future rehabilitation or replacement of the existing pump station. The City has received a \$14.5M SRF loan IFY22. In FY23, the installation of a owmeter and rehabilitation of the coarse screens are the priority items in this application. A new flowmeter installed at the treatment plant will address the desire to expand flow meter accuracy to low and high flows or full operating range. An existing venturi meter has failed and its location and configuration limits replacement options (Exhibit 1). Currently, the force main (Shibit 2). This will relocate sampling from off-site to onsite at the treatment plant. Rehabilitation of a new meter at the reatment plant. Nucleon the existing pump station is required to protect the existing pumps from large debris and extend the useful life of the existing pump station. The major components of this project are: Installation of a new 72' magnetic flow meter. Rehabilitation of coarse screens in the existing pump station. He existing pumps from large debris and extend the useful life of the existing pump station. The major										

2024	2	75	Lewes Board of Public Works	Hoornkill Avenue Sewer Extension	93	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Broadkill River WPCC 3075H/74	\$1,814,888	N/A	N/A	\$1,814,888	212
Descript replace a homes, t homes h from the will elimin pipe and main and freeboard	Description of Project and Problem: The project will install approximately 1,900 feet of 8-inch PVC sewer main, five (5) manholes with frames and covers, upgrade and climate-harden one (1) existing sewage pump station, replace approximately 400 feet of 4-inch PVC force main, approximately 725 feet of 6-inch PVC house sewer services with cleanouts, sewer main, service trench, and necessary private property restoration, for 31 single family homes, to serve the existing Hoornkill Avenue community with BPW public sewer service. Currently, 11 homes are situated outside the City of Lewes corporate limits and do not have public sewer or water systems. Those 11 homes have various levels of onsite septic systems including at least one that is failing and will require replacement. The existing, on-site septic systems will be abandoned after each resident connects their sewage plumbing from the home to the sewer cleanout left in front of their homes via this project. The Hoornkill Avenue community is concerned about wastewater leaching into freshwater aquifers. Installation of the Board's public sewer system will eliminate the existing on-site septic systems and provide a safer, healthier, more-sustainable sewage collection and treatment alternative. In addition, the project will replace existing 8-inch terracotta clay sewage collection and reatment alternative. In addition, the project will replace existing 8-inch terracotta clay sewage ollection and home services installed circa 1966 to serve the 20 single family homes currently located with City of Lewes corporate limits – clay pipe is prone to cracking, joint failure, and root intrusion and will be replaced with PVC sewer main and home services. The existing station is inside the FEMA floodplain without any freeboard – this situation will be addressed and improved as part of this project.										
2024	3	71	Sussex County Council	Warwick Park Gravity Collection System	641	Inland Bays - Indian River Bay N/A	\$9,474,700	N/A	N/A	\$9,474,700	212
Descript that has Warwick the Warv the resid commun along wit	tion o been Cove wick P ents, a ities. 1	of Project a annexed in e, and Gull Park subdiv along with There was (2) large o	and Problem: This is the the boundary of the S Point. The pumpstation ision. The County is pro the Gull Point and Warv enough interest to reque n-site systems serving (	e second phase of the Warv sussex County Unified Sanita will connect to the County's of posing to complete the phass rick Condominium Associatic set the County to proceed with Sull Point & Warwick Cove. T	vick Project a ary Sewer Dis existing gravi e 1 construct ons requesting th presenting This communi	nd consists of a gravity collection and conveyand trict. The proposed collection system will connec ty line manhole in River Road just past the Warw on prior to completion of the Warwick Park comn g information, therefore the County elected to cor the results to County Council and the annexatior ty is directly adjacent to Indian River Bay.	ce system to serve the Wi t to the previously approv ick Park common area. Ti nunity infrastructure (Phas duct a public hearing to p n was approved. This will	arwick Park subd red regional purn ne project will pri se 2). The comm oresent the inform remove approxim	livision a co pstation pro ovide latera unity reque mation, pote nately 161	ommunity in the Oak Orch oposed to serve Warwick al connections to all parce sted polling letters be disi ential costs and timelines existing on-site septic sys	ard Area Park, Is within tributed to to all three stems
2024	4	70	City of Wilmington	CSO 30 Discharge Reduction	70,898	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Christina River NPDES DE0020320	\$15,000,000	N/A	N/A	\$15,000,000	212
highest C Reductio locations event, wi the Chris business <u>The majo</u> Installat Installat Replact Enhanc Constru Utility C bank eno	CSO v on Pro- s when then the stina F ses an or com tion of tion of tion of tion of tion of ement cement cement cement cement conflic cased	volume and ject contin e redirecti ne combine e combine d commer nponents c f new storr f new storr f new storr f new storr f box manh t of draina n or renew of inline o ct Resolutic in concret	I the highest dry weather ues that commitment thr g stormwater to a muni- d wastewater can then I will improve the water of cial activities in the City. <u>f this project are:</u> mwater pipes and manhor lage inlets. ge vallts. a lof existing combined s r offline storage facilities n - The projected constre e. as well as various wa	flow ratio making it the large ough the combined use and cipal separated storm sewer be safely conveyed to the wa uuality in the river. The projec Any new storage in the CSC les.	est contributo optimization of system (MS- sistewater trea- t will also mit 30 sewershe	r of sewer overflow volume and nutrient loading t of multiple methods. One method uses sewer ser ) is practical and economical. Another method us timent plant. The CSO30 Discharge Reduction P igate surface flooding, improving the health and s id will be operated and controlled using the readil	to the Christina River than baration to reduce direct in ses inline or offline storag roject will reduce the quar safety of the community, p ly available RTC optimizat	any other sewe nflow of excess u to attenuate e- ntity and frequen reventing prope tion system.	rshed in W vater to the ccess flow a cy of comb rty damage	ilmington. The CSO30 Dis combined sewer system and hold it until after the s ined sewer overflow disch , and reducing disruption	icharge in torm narges to to
2024	5	70	City of Wilmington	CSO 4a Discharge Reduction	70,898	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Christina River NPDES DE0020320	\$10,100,000	N/A	N/A	\$10,100,000	212
Descript hydraulic discharg methods Another I Reductio the healt the readi Project S The majo Installat Installat Replact Enhanc Rehabi Constru Utility C bank enc	Lescription of Project and Problem: CSO4a is the third largest sewershed in the Wilmington combined sewer area and is ranked as the second highest priority area for reduction in excess flows. Previously performed ydraulic modeling also indicates that select areas within the CSO4a sewershed are at risk of experiencing surface flooding from the combined sewer during large rainfall events. Related to water quality impacts, the volume of ischarges through CSO4a is a significant contributor to the nutrient loading to Brandywine Creek. The CSO4a Discharge Reduction Project continues that commitment through the combined use and optimization of multiple nother method uses inline or offline storage to attenuate excess flow and hold it until after the storm event, when the combined wastewater can then be safely conveyed to the wastewater treatment plant. The CSO4a Discharge Reduction Project will reduce the quantity and frequency of combined sewer overflow discharges to the Brandywine Creek which will improve the water quality in the river. The project will also mitigate surface flooding, improving the readily available RTC optimization system. <u>Vroject Scope</u> The major components of this project are: Installation of new stormwater pipes and manholes. Replacement of drainage inlets. Replacement of drainage inlets. Replacement of drainage valts. Rehabilitation or request pipes and manholes. Construction of rine or offline storage facilities. Utilty Conflict Resolution - The projected construction areas are characterized by the presence of numerous utilities including the existing CSO and overflow, proposed storm sewer, communication ducts, large electric duct project and exceeding and provide and ending the existing CSO and overflow, proposed storm sewer, communication ducts, large electric duct project and exceeding and provide and ending the provide and ending the existing CSO and overflow, proposed storm sewer, communication ducts, large electric duct p										
2024	6	68	Sussex County Council	Bethany Forest	326	Inland Bays - Indian River Bay	\$4,870,300	N/A	N/A	\$4,870,300	212
Descript the Suss provide I central s requeste majority i any futur	In the second of the community explaining the potential project, costs and timeline. During the public hearing the department asked those in attendance if we should proceed with the annexation and the newast of the new as approved. This will remove approximately 89 existing on-site septic systems and eliminate the need for no future on-site systems in the community. This community is directly adjacent to the Joshia and Edger Prongs of the Indian River Bay.										

2024	7	67	Sussex County Council	Indian River Acres	213	Inland Bays - Indian River Bay N/A	\$3,770,800	N/A	N/A	\$3,770,800	212
Descript boundary Omar Ro parcels k hearing o resolution	escription of Project and Problem: This project consists of a low-pressure grinder pump system to serve the Indian River Acres subdivision a community in the Dagsboro Area. This is a new area created and added to the oundary of the Sussex County Unified Sanitary Sewer District (SCUSSD). The proposed grinder pump system will connect to existing County owned and operated infrastructure in Vines Creek Road (Route 26) just northwest of Dmar Road. The project will provide individual grinder pumps to all parcels within the Indian River Acres subdivision. The Engineering Department received a formal request from the IRAA Board to establish a sewer project for all arcels known as Indian River Acres. The County developed the petitions and circulated them to the property owners, with a sufficient number of petitions received we request permission to prepare and post notices for the public iearing on a proposed boundary. With the boundary approved we proceeded to referendum with the results showing (51) in favor and (2) opposed. The results were presented to County Council where they approved a esolution declaring Indian River Acres and area to be added to the SCUSSD. This will remove approximately (51) existing on-site septic systems and eliminate the need for several others directly adjacent to Indian River Bay.										
2024	8	60	City of Wilmington	Substation #3 Replacement	70,898	Piedmont - Shellpot Creek NPDES DE0020320	\$9,000,000	N/A	N/A	\$9,000,000	212
Descript degraded The subs flash risk non-com Project S This proj - Demolit - New du - Comple - TCB Pc	escription of Project and Problem: Substation #3 was installed in 1976 and is beyond its useful life. It is elevated adjacent to the Tertiary Pumping building. Overhead power lines and poles to disinfection system are also agraded and require replacement or re-routing. Recent test reports include many component failures, water damage and pitted and corroded components. Replacement parts are unavailable due to equipment obsolescence. he substation is not equipped with the modern monitoring capabilities or safety features. The substation must be replaced to avoid major emergency shutdowns of the site and processes. The current equipment poses an arc sah risk that could result in fire and extended power outage which would result in a failure to pump from Secondary Clarifiers to polishing ponds and disinfection system resulting in possible flooding, bypass of disinfection and on-compliance. roject Scope his project includes the following main components: Demolition and disposal of existing Power distribution equipment. New duct bank, 12.5 kV conductors, and fiber optic cable from the main switchgear on the west side of Hay Rd to the existing substation footprint on the east side of Hay Rd. Complete installation of new 12kV NEMA 3R Substation sized to serve new tertiary lift pumps and river feeders.										
2024	9	60	City of Wilmington	Digester #4 Rehabilitation	70,898	Piedmont - Shellpot Creek NPDES DE0020320	\$5,000,000	N/A	N/A	\$5,000,000	212
Phase 2     Phase 4     Phase 4     Phase 4     Phase 4     Phase 5     Phase 6     Phase 7     Project 5     Each pha     Drainag     New dig     Foam 5     NCC at     Pioing i     Pioing i     Pioing 6	<ul> <li>Phase 1 - Digester #2 Rehabilitation with fixed steel cover (in progress).</li> <li>Phase 2 - Digester #5 Rehabilitation with gas holding membrane cover (in progress).</li> <li>Phase 3 - Waste Gas Flare Relocation and Replacement (in design).</li> <li>Phase 4 - Digester #4 Rehabilitation with fixed steel cover.</li> <li>Phase 5 - Digester #1 Rehabilitation.</li> <li>Phase 6 - Digester #1 Rehabilitation project are in progress. The next phase of the project is the rehabilitation of Digester #4. A new cover will replace the old floating cover to prevent an imminent failure of the gester and improve the gas capacity of the digester. Concrete and steel structure repairs will improve the structural integrity of the digester to dead up dyraded to adapt with the new digester cover, and the existing MCC and feeder will be evaluated to coder with the new digester cover and the existing MCC and feeder will be relocated to conform with the last codes to improve plant staffy and reduce risks of electrical hazards new thore of the right time and installing a hydraulic mixing system is maintains uniform digester conditions if desired in the future for Fats, Ois and Grease (FOG).</li> <li>Toglest Coope</li> <li>The project condition assessment to fully define scope of rehabilitation.</li> <li>New digester cover.</li> <li>Phase 1 - Digester for the regionent upgrades.</li> <li>Piping improvements.</li> <li>Rehabilitation of concrete and civil structures as necessary.</li> <li>The project cover includes labor and material for mechanical, electrical, structural, and piping work associated with removing the existing floating steel covers and installing new fixed steel or membrane cover for Digester #4.</li> </ul>										
2024	10	60	City of Wilmington	Primary Clarifier #1 Rehabilitation	70,898	Piedmont - Brandywine Creek NPDES DE0020320	\$2,500,000	N/A	N/A	\$2,500,000	212
Descript clarifier # past their significar grout pao Project S Work for - Detailed - Demolit - Structur - Installat	Description of Project and Problem:       Primary clarification is an essential treatment process that removes suspended solids, floatable debris, and scum, and reduces solids loading to downstream treatment. Existing primary larifier #1 was constructed in 1952. The concrete structure is original and has not undergone rehabilitation or repairs in 70 years. Clarifier mechanism and drive have been partially replaced several decades ago and are also as their useful life. Based on condition assessments from 2017, 2021, and 2023, the existing coated steel mechanism is experiencing rapid corrosion. Coating on the steel has completely failed, and the steel members have ignificant metal loss, presenting an operational and safety hazard. Catwalk support beams, center drive support angle, and influent well all have significant corrosion damage. The concrete structure is in poor condition and the rout the bottom of the tank has failed.         'roject Scope       'Vork for the primary clarifier #1 rehabilitation includes concrete repairs, replacement of grout bottom, replacement of clarifier mechanism, center drive, weirs, baffles, and walkway:         Detailed design, procurement of long lead items, and proparation of bid documents.         Demolition of existing mechanism, center drive, weirs, baffles, and walkway.         2024       11       60       City of Wilmington       Secondary Treatment Rehabilitation 2024       70,898       Piedmont - Brandywine Creek       \$6,000,000       N/A       N/A       \$6,000,000       212										
2024	11	60	City of wilmington	Rehabilitation 2024	70,898	NPDES DE0020320	\$6,000,000	N/A	N/A	\$6,000,000	212
Descript concrete mechanic ongoing o <u>Project S</u> The majo - Final Ba	tion of structu cal com constru Scope or comp asins R	Project a ures have ponents uction pro- ponents of tehabilitat	and Problem: The exist severely deteriorated ar and electrical controls ar ject. f this project are: ion: includes longitudinal	ing aeration and final basin in nd corroded, resulting in safe e obsolete and need to be u and cross collectors. collectors.	(secondary c ety hazards, o ipgraded to a tor motors. s	larifier) structures were built in 1971 and expande operational inefficiencies, and reduced reliability. ccommodate more operational flexibility. Structur tructural repairs to concrete and steel.	ed in 1993. Aeration grids The tanks and mechanica al repairs and mechanica	have not been r Il equipment are I upgrades are n	eplaced in beyond the eeded. Thi	almost 20 years. The stee ir useful life. Additionally, s project is for the next ph	I and many ase of the

- Aeration Tank Overhauls: includes new fine-bubble diffuser grids, instrumentation, new controls, structural repairs, replacement of walkways with grating.

2024	12	45	Lewes Board of Public Works	4th Street Sewer Replacement and Improvements	84	Delaware Bay & Estuary - Broadkill River WPCC 3075H/74	\$2,187,735	N/A	N/A	\$2,187,735	212
Description of Project and Problem: The project will install approximately 700 feet of 8-inch PVC sewer main and 1,300 feet of 15-inch PVC sewer main, replacing approximately 2,000 feet of terracotta clay pipe currently serving the 4th Street corridor from Savannah Road to Burton Avenue. Portions of this existing pipe date back to the early 1900's with most installed before 1970. Certain sections of the existing clay sewer main may be addressed utilizing the environmentally innovative technique of cured-in place lining that eliminates excavation and backfill issues and typically results in project cost savings. In addition, the project will install eleven (11) new sewer manholes with frames and covers, 700-feet of 6-inch PVC house service pipe (replacing existing aging and failing terracotta clay service pipe) including we branches and sewer Cleanouts, and necessary private property restoration, for 29 parcels in the 4th Street corridor to be addressed as part of this project. Finally, sewer mains will be extended outside the 4th Street right-of-way to numerous side streets such the mains on those streets can be replaced as necessary in the future without excavating back into 4th Street.											
2024	13	35	City of Newark	Sanitary Sewer Study and Repairs	30,061	Piedmont - Christina River N/A	\$2,200,000	N/A	N/A	\$2,200,000	212
Descript Intercept fractures CCTV ins Sewer Cl utility infr	tion of I or and t , inflow spectior leaning astructu	Project a the upstru and infilt n, various Program ure.	and Problem: This proje eam portion of the Cool I ration, roots, and pump s point repairs, and apply and the Capacity Plann	ect proposes to address the i Run Interceptor, the two mai station and force main issue ying liners in areas requiring ing Report. This is a recurrin	major deficier n trunk lines s. To address rehabilitation ig project whi	ncies that were identified in the previous five year that receive sewage from Newark. Some of the d s these issues, this project spans the entire City s n. Pump station upgrades and repairs are also inc ich has successfully utilized SRF funding since 20	rs' worth of sewer inspecti eficiencies identified so fa sewer system including bo duded. Cleaning, inspection 018 and Newark City Cou	ons. The City ha r are mains exp th the White Cla on, and rehabilita ncil has made it	as focused o osed in the ay and Cool ation activiti a priority to	on inspecting the White C bank of the White Clay C Run Basins. This project es are prioritized based o repair and replace the C	Clay Creek Creek, i includes on the City's ity's aging
2022	14	35	City of Seaford	Martin Farms Sewer Relocation	169	Chesapeake Bay - Nanticoke River NPDES DE0020265	\$3,349,436	N/A	N/A	\$3,344,017	212
Descript gravity se located ir roadway replaced	tion of l ewer ma n the ba which v with ne	Project a ain, fiftee ackyards will provic w mains	and Problem: The proje n manholes and cover, a of the residences of this le better access as well and services to each re	ect will install approximately 3 and 67 new laterals to reside area via an easement. The as update approximately 70- sidence in the neighborhood	3,180 feet of ences. The ex location of th -year-old pipe	8-inch gravity sewer main (connected into the exi isting Martin Farms neighborhood water and sew e utilities makes access for maintenance very diff a. The four-inch (4") and eight-inch (8") cast iron v	isting collection system or ver system is aging, conta ficult and burdensome to water main is known to ha	n Nylon Boulevai ins lead water so the City. This pro ve lead goosene	rd and Suss ervices and oject would eck bends fi	ex Avenue), 1,750 feet o is misaligned with the ma relocate the utilities into the or each service and would	of 10-inch ains he paved d be
2024	15	30	City of Newark	Silverbrook Pump Station Upgrades	30,061	Piedmont - Christina River N/A	\$1,400,000	N/A	N/A	\$1,350,000	212
Program The proje - Replace - Safety I - Access - Operati	, Newar ect scop ement c Upgrade upgrad onal up tal FFY	rk City Co be is outli of genera es includ les includ grades to 2024 W	Junci has made it a prior ned below: tor and fuel source to na ing permanent gas moni ding door and activity ala o include wetwell rehabili Jastewater and Storm	rity to repair and replace the tural gas. toring, confined space entry rms with video surveillance. itation, backup pumping, and	apparatus, a	utility infrastructure. nd signage. figurations.	\$331,712,449			\$241,283,030	
FFY 20	24 C	WSRF	GPR Projects (*Th	ne Percentage of the	Project th	nat is Energy Efficient will be detern	nined after receipt	of applicatio	on)		CWA
Year	Year Rank	Score	Applicant	Project Name	Population Served	Waterbody / NPDES Permit	Total Project Cost	GPR Category	GPR Eligibility	CWRF Financing	Project Type
2024	N/A	95	Environmental Finance	Green Project Reserve	961,939	N/A	\$4,500,000	TBD	Yes	\$4,500,000	319/GPR
Descript considera plan; wat	t <b>ion of l</b> ation thi ter quali	Project a rough a s ity improv	and Problem: Implement Special Project Solicitation vement; eligibility of application	nted projects will be specifica on Advertisement conducted icant and project; and applic	ally designed by the Divisi ant capacity.	to improve water quality as part of specific Delaw on of Watershed Stewardship, Nonpoint Source Partnerships are encouraged where necessary	vare priority watershed im (NPS) Pollution Program I to promote larger projects	provement plans based on geogra that are beyond	s. Proposals aphic scope I the capac	s will be selected for fundi ; watershed impairment; v ty of smaller organization	ing watershed ıs.
2023	3	70	The Town of Millsboro	Sussex Central School Reclaimed Water Irrigation Pump Station and Pivots	~7,000	Inland Bays - Indian River See Project Description	\$735,821	Water Efficiency	Yes	\$735,821	212/GPR
Descript (IRSD) S system. ( parallel s redirect S construct -Construct (White Fi - Constru	tion of I Sussex ( Currentle anitary Stockley ted in tv ction of ields) an uction of	Project a Central H ly the for sewer fo y sewer to vo contra a below- nd future of approx	and Problem: This proj- ligh School. The Town h ce main from Stockley di roce main at the same tim to the new White Farm W cts: grade pop-up pivot spra (Green Fields) locations imately 9,300 linear feet	ect includes the construction as an agreement with the De scharges near the Route 24 e as the BRM for realization /WTP. The parallel force ma y irrigation system at the Ind s. of beneficial reuse main (BF	of a benefici elaware Divis Millsboro Po of economie in is included lian River Sch	al reuse main that would be installed from the ne ion of Health and Social Services (DHSS) that all nd bridge. The force main is antiquated, and the is of scale. The sewer force main will be extender in this application funding request. PROJECT C nool District Sussex Central High School location	w White Farm WWTP to to ows the sanitary sewer for Town is fearful that the fo d to Stockley's property lin CONSTRUCTION SUMMA and expansion thereof. F	he spray irrigation om the Stockley rce main may fai ne, which will allo RY The benefic Please see attach	on systems Center to b il. Therefore ow them to ial water rep ned Project	at the Indian River Schoo e pumped into the Town's , the Town wishes to inst connect to the new force use project will most likely Location for locations of	ol District s collection tall a main and y be existing
2023	5	60	The Town of Millsboro	Sussex Central School Reclaimed Water Irrigation Beneficial Reuse Main	~7,000	Inland Bays - Indian River N/A	\$6,499,088	Water Efficiency	Yes	\$6,499,088	212/GPR
Descript (IRSD) S system. ( parallel s redirect S construct - Constru (White Fi - Constru	rescription of Project and Problem: This project includes the construction of a beneficial reuse main that would be installed from the new White Farm WWTP to the spray irrigation systems at the Indian River School District RSD) Sussex Central High School. The Town has an agreement with the Delaware Division of Health and Social Services (DHSS) that allows the sanitary sewer from the Stockley Center to be pumped into the Town's collection system. Currently the force main from Stockley discharges near the Route 24 Millsboro Pond bridge. The force main is antiquated, and the Town is fearful that the force main may fail. Therefore, the Town wishes to install a arallel sanitary sewer force main at the same time as the BRM for realization of economies of scale. The sewer force main will be extended to Stockley's property line, which will allow them to connect to the new force main and adirect Stockley sewer to the new White Farm WWTP. The parallel force main is included in this application funding request. PROJECT CONSTRUCTION SUMMARY The beneficial water reuse project will most likely be onstructed in two contracts: Construction of a below-grade pop-up pivot spray irrigation system at the Indian River School District Sussex Central High School location and expansion thereof. Please see attached Project Location for locations of existing White Fields) and future (Green Fields) locations. Construction of approximately 9,300 linear feet of beneficial reuse main (BRM).										

2023	15	50	Southern Delaware Communities	Colonial Estates MHP Wastewater Treatment Facility	280	Inland Bays - Indian River N/A	\$247,000	GI	Yes	\$247,000	319/GPR
Descript	escription of Project and Problem:										
- Installat	Installation of 10,000-gallon pre-eq tank with coarse bubble diffusers, level transmitter, and install WavTex fixed media.										
- Installat	Installation of (2) Wastecorp mud sucker solids handling diaphragm pump w/ internal check valves, 2b-ec series, 1 hp, 1 ph, 230v, to be located in the wastewater treatment building. Install (4) gate valves. These pumps will										
pump fro	Jmp from pre-eq tank to SBR tank in the building.										
- Installat	Installation of piping associated with VFD for pumps. Additionally, installation of a panel with timer for blowers and automated valve control panel.										
- Installat	Installation of piping associated with tank installation.										
- Installat	Installation of (2) Envir-o ET500 blowers in series with full enclosures on 6" thick concrete pad with 4" gravel base.										
- Installat	Installation of 1" sch-80 pvc from blowers and the provided aeration manifold to the pre-eq tank as shown.										
- Installat	Installation of valve chamber w/ (3) 1" butterfly control valves with actuators.										
2024	1	80	City of Wilmington	Adams Street Green Infrastructure	70,898	Piedmont - Christina River NPDES DE0020320	\$1,600,000	GI	Yes	\$1,600,000	212
Descript	escription of Project and Problem: The City of Wilmington (City) created a Final Long Term Control Plan (FLTCP) in 2010 (updated in 2015) with the goal of meeting regulatory requirements and reducing pollution in its										
waterway	raterways especially through reducing combined sever overflows (CSOs). As part of that goal, the City is implementing a Green Stormwater Infrastructure (GSI) Program composed of various projects including the Adams Street										

Green Infrastructure Project. The Adams Street Project was selected because it is centrally located in west of downtown and inside of the CSO 30 Sewershed draining to the Christina River. CSO 30 has been identified as significant contributor to nutrient load via combined sewer overflows in the City. The Project is located at the Adams Street basketball courts which are owned by the City Department of Parks and Recreation and adjacent DeIDOT owned properties. The Adams Street Courts property consists of several basketball courts, trees, and walking paths. The property north is currently undeveloped green space adjoining a parking lot under the highway. The Project integrates bioretention gardens with landscaping of the green space to complement several mature trees and existing amenities (Figure 1). The GSI as designed will capture rainwater runoff from the Interstate overpass downspouts, adjacent streets and other paved areas, and overland flow. Landscape improvements have been designed to repair and protect eroded areas on the property. The proposed project will be planned and implemented in coordination with planned Delaware Department of Transportation improvements at this site. The figure below shows the layout of the proposed improvements. The bioretention areas have been designed to capture approximately 150,600 gallons of stormwater resulting in a reduction of 0.34 lbs/yr of total phosphorous (TP) and 2.76 lbs/yr reduction in total nitrogen (TN) from the Christina River helping the City to meet or exceed the goals of the FLTCP. The project will also improve an existing park in the City center for the local community and for commuters entering Wilmington through this City Gateway.

Sub-Total FFY 2024 GPR Projects	\$13,581,909	\$13,581,909
Total CWSRF FFY 2024 Project Funding	\$345,294,358	\$254,864,939

Notes: Section 212 Publicly-Owned Treatment Works; Section 319 Non-Point Source; Section 320 Natural Estuary; LCL and Conservation Loan; WQIL Water Quality Improvement Loan; GPR Green Project

### Prior Year Ending Fund Balance/ This Years Starting Balance: \$8,980,012.71

		FY22	FY23	FY24	FY25	FY26	FY27
		Actual	Actual	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected
1.	Revenue (includes Fed and Non-	-Fed Admin)					
	Total Annual Revenues	\$3,299,986	\$3,545,545	\$3,630,043	\$3,702,643	\$3,776,696	\$3,852,230
2.	EF Administrative Expenses and	l Uses (includes	Fed and Non-I	Fed Admin)			
	Total Administrative Total Administrative	\$1,250,847 \$46,710	\$1,418,214 \$63,102	\$1,488,899 \$200,000	\$1,609,603 \$200,000	\$1,732,681 \$200,000	\$1,858,181 \$200,000
3.	CWSRF State Match			\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
4.	Grant Program Expenses & Addit	tional DNREC P	osition Salaries	s/Benefits			
	Total Program Expenses	\$1.536.545	\$1.689.681	\$3.590.559	\$3.507.473	\$2.944.492	\$2.956.102
	Total Grant Program	\$1,145,165	\$1,350,523	\$3,425,282	\$1,925,000	\$1,350,000	\$1,350,000
5.	Total NFAA Expenses	\$2,787,392	\$3,107,894	\$5,079,458	\$5,117,076	\$4,677,173	\$4,814,283
	Total NFAA End of FY Oblic	\$1,191,875	\$1,413,625	\$3,625,282	\$2,125,000	\$1,550,000	\$1,550,000
6.	Annual Fund Growth (Decrea	\$512,594	\$437,651	(\$1,449,416)	(\$1,414,433)	(\$900,477)	(\$962,052)
7.	Balances						
	Cash Balance Available Balance	\$8,542,362 \$7,350,487	\$8,980,013 \$7,566,387	\$7,530,597 \$3,905,315	\$6,116,164 \$3,991,164	\$5,215,688 \$3,665,688	\$4,253,635 \$2,703,635
8.	Grant Program Annual Budgets						
	Subtotal	\$1,803,216	\$2,150,000	\$3,017,667	\$2,925,000	\$2,525,000	\$2,525,000
	Obligated	\$1,191,875	\$1,413,625	\$3,625,282	\$2,125,000	\$1,550,000	\$1,550,000

### Attachment C- Sources and Uses of Funds for the CWSRF

SFY 2024 Beginning Fund E	Balance	July 1, 2023			\$123,205,179
SFY 2024 Source of Funds Base Capitalization State Match - (20) Supplemental Can State Match - (10) Emerging Contain Repayments* Investment Interer	on Grant (FFY23) %) pitalization Grant (FFY23) %) ninants Capitalization Grant (FFY23 st	)		\$3,683,000 736,600 10,233,000 1,023,300 1,043,000 20,777,548 <u>2,671,588</u>	
Sources Subtota	al projected through	June 30, 2024			\$40,168,036
SFY 2024 Use of Funds					
Construction Loar Administration - ( Technical Assista Reserved for Trar	n Disbursements* 1/5th of 1% of net position) nce (2% of Cap Grants) nsfer of Funds back to DWSRF (as	needed)		\$56,585,043 705,594 299,180 <u>As Needed</u>	
Total Uses Proje	cted				(\$57,589,817)
SFY 2024 Ending Projected	Fund Balance	June 30, 2024			\$105,783,398
SFY 2025 Source of Funds Estimated Base C Estimated Base S Supplemental Ca State Match Supp Emerging Contan Estimated Repay Investment Intere	Capitalization Grant (FFY24) State Match - (20%) pitalization Grant (FFY24) olemental - (20%) ninants Capitalization Grant (FFY24 ments st			\$3,683,000 736,600 10,233,000 2,046,600 1,043,000 23,013,162 2,000,000	\$40.755.000
Projected Sourc	es Subtotal	July 1, 2024			<u>\$42,755,362</u>
SFY 2025 Use of Funds New Loans Clos Section 2 Section 3 Land Con Green Pr Proposed Adminis Proposed Technic Reserved for Tran	ed - From IUP 212 Projects Closed 319 Projects Closed 320 Projects Closed aservation Loans Closed rojects Reserve Solicitation stration - (1/5th of 1% of net position cal Assistance - (2% of Cap Grants) asfer of Funds back to DWSRF (as	n) ) needed)	\$ 2	241,283,030 9,081,909 0 4,500,000 705,594 299,180 <u>As Needed</u>	
Total Loan Oblig Estimated Disbu	ations <u>Proposed</u> rsements on loans closed		\$	255,869,713	\$141,864,743
SFY 2025 Projected Fund Ba	llance	June 30, 2025			\$6,674,017
		•			

\*includes projections through SFY end 6/30/2024

### Attachment D- Binding Commitment and Disbursements by Project

Delaware Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

Data Sources: Project Status Report, Cash Flow Report, and 2024 Draft PPL/IUP			Disbursements Ending 9/30/2025				
			10/1/2024	1/1/2025	4/1/2025	7/1/2025	
				12/31/2024	3/31/2025	6/30/2025	9/30/2025
Project	Loan Amount	Binding Commitment Date	Est. Construction Completion Date	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter
City of Wilmington							
Substation 3 Replacement	\$9,000,000	Pending	Dec-30	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$900,000
Digester 4 Rehab	\$5,000,000	Pending	Nov-27	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$1,000,000
Primary Claritier 1 Rehab Secondary Treatment Rehab	\$2,500,000	Pending	Dec-27	\$∪ \$0	<u>\$0</u> \$0	<u>\$0</u>	\$500,000
CSO 30 Discharge Reduction	\$15,000,000	Pending	Dec-28	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$3,000,000
CSO 4A Discharge Reduction	\$10,100,000	Pending	Dec-28	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$3,030,000
11th Street Pump Station Replacement	\$6,250,000	Pending	Dec-25	<u>\$∪</u> \$0	\$1,875,000 \$1,512,020	\$1,875,000 \$1,512,020	\$1,875,000
WWTP Main Switchgear & Electrical Phase I	\$12,260,000	Pending	Dec-23	\$0	\$2,452,000	\$2,452,000	\$2,452,000
City of Lewes Board of Public Works							
Cape Henlopen State Park Sewer Extension	\$3,875,000	Pending	Dec-25	\$0	\$1,162,500	\$1,162,500	\$1,162,500
Hoornkill Ave Sewer Extension	\$1,814,888	Pending	May-26	\$0	\$181,489	\$181,489	\$362,978
4th Street Sewer Replacement	\$2,187,735	Pending	Dec-26	\$U	\$218,774	\$437,547	\$437,547
Briarwood Estates	\$4,631,363	Pending	Sep-24	\$926,273	\$926,273	\$1 852.545	\$926,273
Warwick Park Area Pumpstation & Forcemain	\$1,225,000	Pending	 Dec-24	\$122,500	\$122,500	\$122,500	\$122,500
North Ellendale Diversion	\$9,236,846	Pending	Sep-24	\$923,685	\$923,685	\$1,847,369	\$5,542,108
Blackwater Village	\$16,273,000	Pending	Sep-24	\$3,254,600	\$3,254,600	\$6,509,200	\$3,254,600
Bethany Forest Septic Elimination	\$4,870,300	Pending	Jul-26	\$487,030	\$974,060	\$974,060	\$974,060
Indian River Acres Septic Elimination	\$3,770,000	Pending	Aug-20	ېں ¢947 470	\$311,000	\$754,100 \$1 894 940	\$/ 34, 100
Kent County Levy Court	φσ,τιτ,του	Fonding	D00-20	ψυτι,τις	φ1,00 <del>1</del> ,010	φ1,007,070	φ1,004,040
Pipeline Condition Investigation (< 12in)	\$3,100,000	Pending	Jul-26	\$0	\$0	\$310,000	\$310,000
Pipeline Condition Investigation (> 12in)	\$2,300,000	Pending	Dec-23	\$0	\$0	\$230,000	\$230,000
US13 Forcemain Replacement Puncheon Run	\$6,894,015	Jan-22	Mar-26	\$689,402	\$2,068,205	\$2,068,205	\$1,378,803
NE Quadrant Sever System Rehab	\$2,000,500	Sep-23	Oct-24	\$0	\$400 100	\$1 600 400	\$0
NW Septic Elimination	\$584.078	Sep-23	Dec-24	\$58,408	\$467,262	\$58,408	\$0
RIBs Van Croy Farm	\$2,863,400	Sep-23	Dec-26	\$0	\$0	\$286,340	\$2,577,060
Town of Delmar							
Delmar Sewer Replacement Phase III City of Seaford	\$1,725,815	Pending	Dec-27	\$0	\$172,582	\$345,163	\$345,163
Waste Water Treatment Facility Upgrade & Expansion	\$7,300,000	Pending	Nov-25	\$730,000	\$1,460,000 \$334,402	\$1,460,000 \$668,803	\$1,460,000
New Castle County	φ3,344,017	reliaing	IVIdi-20	ψυ	\$30 <del>4,40</del> 2	φ000,000	φ000,000
Christina River Force Main Rehab - WIFIA	\$33,000,000	Pending	Nov-26	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Richardson Park Pump Station Phase II	\$15,000,000	Pending	Dec-26	\$0	\$0	\$4,500,000	\$4,500,000
Southern Sanitary Sewer Area - Expanded Treatment	\$26,767,000	Pending	Jun-25	\$0	\$0	\$2,676,700	\$5,353,400
Sanitary Sewer Study & Repairs	\$2,200,000	Pending	Dec-25	\$0	\$220,000	\$440,000	\$440,000
Silverbrook Pump Station	\$1,350,000	Pending	May-25	\$0	\$135,000	\$270,000	\$270,000
Southwood Acres LLC							
Pump Station & Force Main	\$1,824,473	Pending	Dec-25				
	\$241,283,030	1	4				
Green Project Reserve Projects	<u> </u>						
Special Solicitation							
Green Project Reserve	\$4,500,000	One-time	One-time	\$0	\$0	\$4,500,000	\$0
Town of Millsboro	¢c 400.088	Dending	Dog 25	0.2	03	¢4 000 919	¢4 000 010
Sussex Central School Water Irrigation	\$735 821	Pending	Dec-20	ېں \$735 821	<u></u>	\$1,299,010 \$0	\$1,299,010 \$0
City of Wilmington	ψι σσ,σΞ .	1 onding	000 24	ψι σσ,σε.	ψ	ψ	ψν
Adams Street Green Infrastructure	\$1,600,000	Pending	Dec-25	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$320,000
Southern Delaware Communities Inc.							
Colonial Estates MHP	\$247,000	Pending	Dec-25	<u> </u>			
Transfer of Funds back to DWSRF	As Needed	N/A		As Needed	As Needed	As Needed	As Needeo
Administrative Expenses	\$705,594			\$705,594	\$0	\$0	\$0
Totals	\$255,570,533			\$9,580,782	\$21,132,470	\$42,289,167	\$50,053,732
Grant Award - Federal Share	\$3,683,000		I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	\$3,683,000	\$U \$0	\$U \$0	\$U \$0
Grant Award - State Match	\$/36,000 \$10,233,000		I	\$735,000	ېن \$0	ֆՍ \$0	φυ \$0
BIL Supplemental Grant Award - State Match	\$2.046.600		I	\$2.046.600	\$0	\$0	\$0
BIL Emerging Contaminants Grant Award - Federal Share	\$1,043,000		I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	\$1,043,000	\$0	\$0	\$0
CWSRF Corpus - Repayment Funds	\$237,828,333	L		(\$8,161,419)	\$21,132,470	\$42,289,167	\$50,053,732
Base Federal %	83.33%			83.33%			
Base State Match %	16 67%	1		16 67%			

Note 1: All values in blue are calculated.

(1 000101 201010)				
Calendar Year / Federal QTR	Payment Date	ASAP Payment Schedule	ASAP Cumulative Amount	
23/1	1st Quarter	<b>\$0</b>	\$0	
23/2	2nd Quarter	\$0	\$0	
24/3	3rd Quarter	\$0	\$0	
24/4	4th Quarter	\$14,959,000	\$14,959,000	

### (Federal Dollars)

### Attachment F- 2015 PPL SOP

DELAWARE WATER POLLUTION CONTROL STATE REVOLVING FUNDS				
DNREC - ENVIRONMENTAL FINANCE				
Subject: Standard Operating Procedures for establishing the Project Priority List for the Delaware's Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (WPCRF)				
Effective Date: October 20, 2010Revision Date: December 9/2015Date Reviewed:				

### Purpose:

In accordance with the current rules and regulations governing the WPCRF for municipal wastewater treatment works, each state must submit a priority system for the United States Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) approval. The priority system should describe the methodology used by the state to rank projects that are considered eligible for federal assistance. The Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control is the designated state agency for developing and administering the priority system for the WPCRF. The Department must annually prepare and submit a priority list to the EPA of all projects for which federal assistance will be requested from the State's current allotment.

### Policy References:

- Powers and Duties of the Secretary of the Department of Natural Resources and Environmental control. Chapter 80, Title 29, Delaware Code, Sec. 8003
- Water Infrastructure Advisory Council Chapter 80, Title 29, <u>Delaware Code</u>, Sec. 8003(11)(d)(2)
- CWSRF Regulations (40 CFR Part 35.31) <u>https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2011-</u> <u>title40-vol1/pdf/CFR-2011-title40-vol1-part35-subpartK.pdf</u>

### **Records Archive Location:**

The Project Priority List is kept at the following locations.

- G: CWSRF PLL-IUP Annual Process/Annual PPLs and IUPs
- o Environmental Finance Website <u>https://dnrec.alpha.delaware.gov/environmental-finance/</u>

#### **Standard Operating Procedures for establishing the Project Priority List:**

#### **SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION**

- 1.01 The State of Delaware receives monies for the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (WPCRF) under the Clean Water Act which defines the formula for allocating funds to the states. The amount received by the State depends on Congressional appropriations and executive authorization.
- 1.02 In accordance with the current rules and regulations governing the WPCRF for municipal wastewater treatment works, each state must submit a priority system for the United States Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) approval. The priority system should describe the methodology used by the state to rank projects that are considered eligible for federal assistance. The Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control is the designated state agency for developing and administering the priority system for the WPCRF. The Department must annually prepare and submit a priority list to the EPA of all projects for which federal assistance will be requested from the State's current allotment.
- 1.03 A priority system for evaluating projects was established in 1960 to allocate funds. It was amended in 1967, 1971, 1974, 1978, 1983, 1996, 2000, 2005, and 2010 and is hereby further amended to be consistent with the current regulations under the state priority system, as amended, and with state laws.
- 1.04 Pursuant to Chapter 80, Title 29, <u>Delaware Code</u>, Sec. 8003, the Secretary of the Department is empowered to administer the WPCRF in accordance with the requirements set forth in Title VI of the Federal Clean Water Act.
- 1.05 Pursuant to Chapter 80, Title 29, <u>Delaware Code</u>, Sec. 8003(11)(d)(2), the Water Infrastructure Advisory Council will review the Project Priority List and amend, if necessary, and provide for review at a public hearing.

### **SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS**

- 2.01 <u>AVAILABLE FUNDS</u>: Shall mean the capitalization funds plus repayments on previous loans, plus accrued interest available, or expected to be available, to the State for allotment during a fiscal year, and are used for determining the fundable portion of the project priority list. The available funds are determined by subtracting from the total funds available (or expected to be available) to the State, all mandatory, optional, and any additional reserves deemed appropriate by the State.
- 2.02 <u>COUNCIL</u>: Shall mean the Water Infrastructure Advisory Council which is appointed by the Governor of Delaware and the General Assembly.
- 2.03 <u>DEPARTMENT</u>: Shall mean the Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control.
- 2.04 <u>EDU</u>: Equivalent Dwelling Unit shall mean a dwelling unit or equivalent unit discharging 240 gallons per day.
- 2.05 <u>EPA</u>: Shall mean the Unites States Environmental Protection Agency.
- 2.06 <u>FUNDABLE PRIORITY LIST</u>: Shall mean that portion of the Project Priority List which might reasonably be funded from available funds.
- 2.07 <u>MANDATORY DOCUMENTS</u>: Shall mean those materials and information that must be included with a loan application as set forth in the Procedures of the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.
- 2.08 <u>MHI</u>: Shall mean Median Household Income as established by the U.S. Census Bureau and adjusted annually by the regional consumer price index.
- 2.09 <u>PLANNING PRIORITY LIST</u>: Shall mean that portion of the Project Priority List which might be funded

from future authorized allotments and other available funds. It includes those projects which could be moved up onto the Fundable Priority List as detailed in Section 5 of these procedures. Projects on the Planning Priority List shall be subjected to public participation together with and at the same time as those on the Fundable Priority List.

- 2.10 <u>PROJECT</u>: Shall mean a project for the planning, design, or construction of treatment works.
- 2.11 <u>PROJECT COST</u>: Shall mean the total cost of the construction of the project including consulting, legal, and engineering fees.
- 2.12 <u>PROJECT PRIORITY LIST</u>: Shall mean the ordered listing of projects for which the Department expects Federal and State financial assistance.
- 2.13 <u>QUALIFIED AGENCY</u>: Shall mean any legally incorporated town or city, county government, state agency, sanitary district, authority authorized by law, or private business organized to provide treatment works.
- 2.14 <u>TREATMENT WORKS</u>: Shall mean any devices and systems for the storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of municipal sewage or industrial wastes. These include interceptor sewers, outfall sewers, sewage collection systems, pumping, power, and other equipment and their appurtenances; extensions, improvements, remodeling, additions, and alterations thereof; and any works, including acquisition of the land that will be an integral part of the treatment process or is used for ultimate disposal of residues resulting from such treatment (including land for composting sludge, temporary storage of such compost and land used for the storage of treated wastewater in land application systems before land application) or any other method or system for preventing, abating, reducing, storing, treating, separating, or disposing of municipal or industrial waste, including waste in combined storm water and sanitary sewer systems.
- 2.15 <u>WATER QUALITY STANDARDS</u>: Shall mean the standards duly adopted by the State of Delaware and submitted to the Environmental Protection Agency.
- 2.16 <u>WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN</u>: Shall mean any written description of voluntary or mandatory actions that will result in the reduction of pollutant loads to a surface water body. Plans shall be prepared by a qualified agency and include, but not be limited to, Watershed Implementation Plans, Comprehensive Conservation and Management Plans, and Basin Plans.

### **SECTION 3 - PRIORITY SYSTEM**

3.01 All projects, or in the case of non-point source activities programs, considered eligible for State and Federal funding assistance will be evaluated in accordance with the criteria listed below and described in Section 4 - Criteria for Evaluation and Rating. Priorities will strictly follow the scores received. The "best" score a project may receive is 120 points; such a project would have the highest possible priority. The numerical score is derived using the following classifications:

	Maximum Pts	Bonus Pts	
I. Water Quality Protection	0-45 points	0-10 points	
II. Targeted Water Bodies	0-20 points		
III. Clean Water Priorities	0-20 points		
IV. Strategies for State Policies and Spending	0-10 points		
V. Green Project Reserve	0-10 points		
VI. Sustainability	0-30 points		
VII. Land Conservation Sponsorship	0 points	10 points	
VIII. Borrower Type	<u>0-10 points</u>		
Total Priority Score	145 points	30 points	

#### **SECTION 4 - CRITERIA FOR EVALUATION AND RATING**

### 4.01 WATER QUALITY PROTECTION (0-45 points plus 10 bonus points)

For Nutrients, the effectiveness of a given project will be rated based upon the total pounds of nitrogen plus the total pounds of phosphorus that will be removed from discharges as a result of the project. Based on studies conducted by the Department, the total nitrogen plus total phosphorus removal for septic eliminations will be calculated at 0.13 pounds per day per EDU. Other projects, such as wastewater treatment facilities, combined sewer overflows, etc. will be calculated based on engineer's estimates. Points will be determined for effectiveness by multiplying the estimated total pounds of nitrogen plus phosphorus per day to be removed from the discharge by 0.30 (Maximum Points = 45). The qualified agency may submit additional information to support the estimated total pounds of nitrogen plus phosphorus to be removed from the discharge.

For toxic pollutants, the effectiveness of a given project will be rated based on its ability to eliminate or reduce the severity of Delaware fish consumption advisories; eliminate or reduce the severity of toxic impacts to benthic aquatic life; or otherwise attain numeric toxics criteria for the protection of human health and aquatic life in Delaware Water Quality Standards. Points will be determined for effectiveness by multiplying the percent reduction in impact by 0.5 (Maximum Points = 45). The qualified agency may submit additional information to support the estimated percent reduction in toxic impact associated with the project.

Non-point source projects will receive points based on the published efficiencies of the best management practices (BMP's). The points will be determined on the percent efficiency of the project multiplied by 45 points. (i.e. a BMP with a 20% efficiency will receive 9 points).

Treatment plant projects that provide a higher level of treatment than required in the applicable permit will receive an additional BONUS point for each 10% of the allowable pollutant load eliminated by the project.

#### 4.02 TARGETED WATER BODIES (0-20 points)

Pursuant to Section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act, every April 1st of every even-numbered year, Delaware develops a list of waters that do not meet surface water quality standards and need Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs). TMDLs establish the maximum point and non-point source loadings of certain pollutants that must not be exceeded if surface water quality goals are to be met. Priorities (High, Medium, Low) are also established in order to set milestones for the development of TMDLs. Additionally, the "303(d) List" identifies those water bodies targeted for TMDL activities (e.g., monitoring, modeling, developing options, etc.) during the coming 2 years. Scores are assigned as follows:

TMDL Status	Score
Project addresses an existing TMDL allocation, or	20
Project addresses a watershed management plan, or	10
None of the above	0

#### 4.03 <u>CLEAN WATER FACILITY PRIORITIES (0-20 points)</u>

Criteria for ranking specific types of projects that contribute to achieving statewide environmental priorities are presented in this Section.

#### A. SEPTIC SYSTEM ELIMINATION PROJECTS

Septic system elimination projects will receive fifteen (15) points.

## B. WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES and COMBINED SEWER OVERFLOWS (CSO's)

Projects that provide new, upgraded, or expanded wastewater treatment and disposal facilities or eliminate or reduce the impact of wastewater discharges, including CSO's, but excluding septic elimination projects, will receive twenty (20) points.

#### C. OTHER WASTEWATER FACILITY PROJECTS

Projects that provide upgraded or expanded wastewater collection systems, including inflow and infiltration (I&I) elimination, that provide new, upgraded or expanded wastewater transmission systems, including pump or lift stations, but excluding septic elimination projects, will receive ten (10) points. Projects that correct I&I problems will receive fifteen (15) points.

### D. SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT PROJECTS

Projects that correct surface water management problems will receive fifteen (15) points. Projects that address surface water management problems under a MS4 permit will receive twenty (20) points.

### E. WATERSHED APPROACH TO TOXICS ASSESSMENT AND RESTORATION (WATAR)

Projects that implement elimination or reduction of toxic impacts in Delaware surface waters will receive fifteen (15) points. Projects that eliminate or reduce toxics and implement wetland restoration will receive twenty (20) points.

### F. OTHER WATER QUALITY PROJECTS

Other eligible projects that address a non-point source problem, wetland restoration, or other watershed related problem will receive ten (10) points.

### 4.04 STRATEGIES FOR STATE POLICIES AND SPENDING (0-10 points)

The Governor's Cabinet Committee on State Planning Issues has approved "Delaware Strategies for State Policies and Spending".

- A. In part it reads as follows: "It is the State's philosophy that:
  - 1. State spending should promote quality and efficiency not sprawl.
  - 2. State policies should foster order and resource protection not degradation."
- B. Investment Level Descriptions:
  - 1. Level 1 The State will direct maximum assistance to upgrades, reconstruction, treatment improvements, and system expansions and will place priority on existing systems for improved efficiency, enhanced water quality management, and additional capacity for redevelopment, infill, and for new community development that supports efficient and orderly land use patterns.
  - 2. Level 2 The State will direct assistance to extending existing or creating new systems where logical, or where they would prevent future environmental or health risks.
  - 3. Level 3 State financial assistance to local government's wastewater facilities will be prioritized in Level 1 and 2 areas before being considered in Investment Level 3. Investments needed to correct public health and existing environmental problems will be considered on a case-by-case basis.

- 4. Level 4 Additional state investments in water and wastewater systems will be limited to existing or imminent public health, safety or environmental risks only, with little provision for additional capacity to accommodate further development.
- 5. Out of Play Lands that are not at all available for development or for redevelopment. These include publicly-owned lands, lands for which serious legal constraints on development are identified, and lands in some form of permanent open-space protection.

Investment Level Scores - Projects in investment areas will be rated as follows:

Investment Level (212 projects only)		Points 199
Level 1	10	
Level 2	10	
Level 3	5	
Level 4	0	
Out of Play		0

Non-Point Source projects are highly likely to be in non-investment areas and do not contribute to sprawl.

Non-Point Sour	ce Projects (319)	10

#### 4.05 <u>GREEN PROJECT RESERVE (0-10 points)</u>

Congress' intent in enacting the Green Project Reserve (GPR) is to direct State investment practices in the water sector to guide funding toward projects that utilize green or soft-path practices to complement and augment hard or gray infrastructure, adopt practices that reduce the environmental footprint of water and wastewater treatment, collection, and distribution, help utilities adapt to climate change, enhance water and energy conservation, adopt more sustainable solutions to wet weather flows, and promote innovative approaches to water management problems. Over time, GPR projects could enable utilities to take savings derived from reducing water losses and energy consumption, and use them for public health and environmental enhancement projects. Additionally, EPA expects that green projects will help the water sector improve the quality of water services without putting additional strain on the energy grid, and by reducing the volume of water loss every year.

Projects that address green infrastructure, water or energy efficiency improvements, or other environmentally innovative activities will receive additional points in the ranking.

Eligibility will be determined by using the EPA document: 2010 Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 20% Green Project Reserve: Guidance for Determining Eligibility – April 21, 2010

Projects that meet the requirements of one of the four categories below will receive ten (10) points.

### A. GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE

Green stormwater infrastructure includes a wide array of practices at multiple scales that manage wet weather and that maintain and restore natural hydrology by infiltrating, evapotranspiring and harvesting and using stormwater. On a regional scale, green infrastructure is the preservation and restoration of natural landscape features, such as forests, floodplains and wetlands, coupled with policies such as infill and redevelopment that reduce overall imperviousness in a watershed. On the local scale green infrastructure consists of site- and neighborhood-specific practices, such as bioretention, trees, green roofs, permeable pavements and cisterns.

#### B. WATER EFFICIENCY

EPA's WaterSense program defines water efficiency as the use of improved technologies and

practices to deliver equal or better services with less water. Water efficiency encompasses conservation and reuse efforts, as well as water loss reduction and prevention, to protect water resources for the future.

#### C. ENERGY EFFICIENCY

Energy efficiency is the use of improved technologies and practices to reduce the energy consumption of water quality projects, use energy in a more efficient way, and/or produce/utilize renewable energy.

#### D. ENVIRONMENTALLY INNOVATIVE

Environmentally innovative projects include those that demonstrate new and/or innovative approaches to delivering services or managing water resources in a more sustainable way.

#### 4.06 SUSTAINABILITY (0-30 points)

#### A. ASSET MANAGEMENT

The project will receive ten (10) points if the system has mapped its wastewater collection and treatment components and analyzed conditions, including risks of failure, expected dates of renewals and ultimate replacements, and sources and amounts of revenues needed to finance operations, maintenance and capital needs.

#### B. FULL COST PRICING

The project will receive ten (10) points if project/system has developed appropriate pricing/rate/affordability standards to build, operate, and maintain systems AND project/system has specifically allocated funds for the rehabilitation and replacement of aging and deteriorating infrastructure.

#### C. CLIMATE CHANGE / RESILIENCY

Projects that incorporate climate change considerations and/or that increase climate resiliency will receive ten (10) points. The State of Delaware has published scenarios for sea level rise and projections for precipitation and temperature that can be utilized for this purpose.

4.07 WATER QUALITY or LAND CONSERVATION SPONSORSHIP (10 bonus points)

The project will receive ten (10) points if the applicant is willing and eligible to sponsor a Forestland, Open Space, or Wetlands Conservation Easement or an Ecology or Watershed Restoration Project. Project must be defined to receive credit for this section.

#### 4.08 TYPE OF APPLICANT (0-10 points)

Applicants will receive points based on type of borrower:	
Municipality (i.e. City, Town, or County)	10 points
State Agency	10 points
Non-Profit	5 points
None of the Above	0 points

#### 4.09 PROJECT PRIORITY LIST

Projects are ranked based upon the total scores. The total scores will determine the Project Priority List. In the case of a tie in the priority ranking, projects will be selected in the order of the population served. The project benefiting the larger population will be rated higher.

#### **SECTION 5 - OPERATING PROCEDURES**

- 5.01 Potential applicants for a WPCRF loan are to notify the Department of their intent to seek financial assistance for a project to be undertaken in the subsequent fiscal year (beginning July 1). Potential applicants may submit a Notice-of-Intent by as directed by the Department.
- 5.02 Potential loan applicants will be notified by the Department at least thirty (30) days in advance an impending deadline for receipt of Notifications-of-Intent.
- 5.03 The Notification-of-Intent shall contain the following information:
  - a. Name of municipality or qualified agency and responsible party.
  - b. Estimated total construction costs of the project for which a loan will be sought. Also, the estimated cost of the planning studies and the design costs (preparation of plans and specifications). List the various costs separately.
  - c. Brief description of the proposed project including anticipated scope, water pollution control needs, and population affected. The description must be sufficient to evaluate the project based on the project priority list ranking criteria.
  - d. Estimated dates of initiation and completion of the preliminary plans and studies (if completed, so state).
  - e. Estimated dates of initiation and completion of construction drawings and specifications (if completed, so state).
  - f. Estimated dates of initiation and completion of construction.
  - g. Estimated date(s) of initiation of operations.
  - h. The NPDES or other permit number if one exists.
- 5.04 Successful applicants will be notified of their placement on the State's "Project Priority List" for the subsequent fiscal year.
- 5.05 Once notified of their placement on the fundable portion of the Priority List, qualified agencies will have sixty (60) days to submit a complete application and retain their rank on the Priority List.
- 5.06 All loan applications must be complete and accompanied by the required "mandatory documents" stipulated in the procedures of the Delaware Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund, and any additional checklists and/or background materials requested by the Department and of which the applicant shall be informed.
- 5.07 Applicants for projects on the "Planning Priority List" will be notified and their projects advanced to the Fundable Priority List in order of their priority score or readiness to proceed when, for any reason, a project must be removed from the current years Fundable Priority List, or when additional funds become available.
- 5.08 Applicants may be given at least fifteen (15) days by the Department to supply missing or corrected mandatory application documents and at least twenty (20) days to comply with requests for corrections, changes, or additions to the plans and specifications. Failure to respond within the period stipulated in the letter of transmittal may result in the project being dropped to the bottom of the review list for processing.
- 5.09 Applications will be processed and the plans/specifications reviewed by the Department in chronological

order of receipt of same from the applicant. In the case of concurrent submittal, priority score will determine the review position.

- 5.10 Projects on the "Planning Priority List" will not automatically be placed on a subsequent years Project Priority List. Applicants must resubmit the Notification-of-Intent in order to have the project reviewed and scored again for placement on the subsequent years Project Priority List.
- 5.11 The Council shall annually hold a public hearing on the proposed project priority lists in accordance with Sec. 8003(11)(d)(2) of 20 <u>Delaware Code</u> and comment upon, approve, or rearrange the priority lists.